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United States

Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C . 20549

FORM 10-Q

Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) othe Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the quarterly period ended: March 31, 2012

O Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) bthe Securities Exchange Act of 193
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number: 001-31410

COTT CORPORATION

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaetr)

CANADA 98-0154711
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

6525 VISCOUNT ROAD
MISSISSAUGA, ONTARIO

5519 WEST IDLEWILD AVE L4V 1H6
TAMPA, FLORIDA 33634
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code(905) 672-1900 and (813) 313-1800

Indicate by check mark whether the registranth@s filed all reports required to be filed by Sewti3 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementshe past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&b site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of thiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such file¥)es No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer, or a smaller
reporting company. See the definitions of “largeederated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “small@porting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the
Exchange Act.

Large accelerated fil¢ Accelerated filel O

Non-accelerated file [0 (do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting compar [
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exgle Act). Yes[O No
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of e&tiedssuer’s classes of common stock, as ofdtest practicable date.

Class QOutstanding at May 2, 201
Common Stock, no par value per sh 95,101,230 share
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PART | — F INANCIAL INFORMATION

Iltem 1. Financ ial Statements

Cott Corporation
Consolidated St atements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share and pbare amounts)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm

Operating income

Other (income) expense, r
Interest expense, n
Income before income taxe

Income tax expens
Net income

Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation

Net income per common share attributed to Cott Corpration
Basic

Diluted

Weighted average outstanding shares (thousands) Atiuted to Cott Corporation
Basic
Diluted

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, 201:
$ 523.¢
460.4

63.4

41.¢
0.€

21.C

0.2)
14.C
7.2

0.4
$ 6.8
0.6
$ 5i¢

$ 0.0¢€
$ 0.0¢

94,42"
95,70z

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.

3

April 2, 2011

$

534.1

464.5

69.€
45.1

24.¢C
0.8

14.4

9.3

1.€
7.7

0.8

* &

6.8

0.07
0.07

94,07¢
95,32¢
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Cott Corporation
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehens iveeome
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended
March 31, 201 April 2, 2011
Net income $ 6.8 $ 7.7
Other comprehensive income (los
Currency translation adjustme 8.2 9.5
Pension benefit plan, net of t! (0.5 0.2
Unrealized (loss) gain on derivative instrumentg, of tax2 0.3 0.2
Total other comprehensive income 7.4 9.6
Comprehensive income $ 14.2 $ 17¢€
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to-controlling interest: 0.8 0.8
Comprehensive income attributed to Cott Corporation $ 13.4 $ 16.7

Net of the effect of nil and $0.1 million tax bendér the three months ended March 31, 2012 andl 2p2011.
Net of the effect of a $0.1 million tax benefit ab@. 1 million tax expense for the three months dridarch 31, 2012 and April 2, 201

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)

Unaudited

March 31, 201: December 31, 201
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash & cash equivalen $ 31.¢ $ 100.¢
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $5.9 (¥&f December 31, 201 234.¢ 210.¢
Income taxes recoverak 9.4 9.¢
Inventories 228t 210.(
Prepaid expenses and other as 21.1 19.2
Total current assets 525.2 550.¢
Property, plant & equipmel 490.¢ 482.2
Goodwill 130.: 129.¢
Intangibles and other ass: 335.¢ 341.]
Deferred income taxe 5.C 4.1
Other tax receivabl 1.1 1.C
Total assets $ 1,488 $  1,508¢
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term deb $ 2.t $ 3.4
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit 245k 281.]
Total current liabilities 248.( 284.t
Long-term debt 602.: 602.1
Deferred income taxe 35.1 34.1
Other lon¢-term liabilities 20.k 20.C
Total liabilities 905.¢ 940.7
Equity
Capital stock, no pe- 95,101,230 (December 31, 20- 95,101,230) shares issu 395.¢ 395.¢
Treasury stocl (2.2) (2.2)
Additional paic-in-capital 43.¢ 42.¢€
Retained earning 150.( 144.1
Accumulated other comprehensive i (17.2) (24.9)
Total Cott Corporation equity 570.C 555.¢
Non-controlling interest: 12.1 12.2
Total equity 582.1 568.2
Total liabilities and equity $ 1,488.( $ 1,508.¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation

Co nsolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, 201:
Operating Activities

Net income $ 6.8
Depreciation & amortizatio 23.¢
Amortization of financing fee 1.2
Shar-based compensation expel 0.8
Increase in deferred income ta; —
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 0.€
Other noi-cash item: (0.9
Change in operating assets and liabilities, netcqisition:
Accounts receivabl (20.5)
Inventories (16.5)
Prepaid expenses and other as (1.8
Other asset 1.C
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit (38.9)
Income taxes recoverak 0.3
Net cash used in operating activit (43.7)
Investing Activities
Acquisition (5.0
Additions to property, plant & equipme (27.9)
Additions to intangibles and other ass (2.7)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipn —
Net cash used in investing activiti (25.9
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term debt (1.2
Borrowings under ABL 7.C
Payments under AB (7.0
Distributions to no-controlling interest: (1.7
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi 2.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 155
Net decrease in cash & cash equivalen (69.9)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of period 100.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end of period $ 31.€
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow information
Cash paid for intere: $ 16.C
Cash paid for income taxes, | $ 0.2

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofélmmsolidated financial statements.
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April 2, 2011

$ 7.7
23.¢

0.6

11

0.6

0.2

(29.9)
(6.1)

0.2

(0.1)
(21.9)
(2.6)
(25.6)

(12.9

0.1
(12.9

(1.9)
99.¢
(72.5)
(1.6)

24..

1.2

(12.9)

48.2
$ 35.¢

$ 17.%
$ 3.4
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Cott Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Equ ity

(in millions of U.S. dollars, except share amounts)
Unaudited

Cott Corporation Equity

Accumulated
Number of Number of Other Non-

Common Treasury Common Treasury Additional Retained Comprehensive Controlling
Shares Shares Paid- Total
(In thousands (In thousands Shares Shares in-Capital Earnings Loss Interests Equity
Balance at January 1,
2011 94,75( 1,051 $395¢ $ (3.2 $ 40.& $106t 3% (175 $ 13.C $535.C
Treasury shares issued -
PSU Plar — (181) — 0.5 (0.5 — — — —
Treasury shares issuec
EISPP — (29¢) — 0.6 (0.€) — — — —
Share-based
compensatiol — — — — 1.1 — — — 11
Distributions to non-
controlling interest: — — — — — — — (1.6 (1.6)
Comprehensive incorr
Currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — 9.t — 9.t
Pension benefit
plan, net of ta; — — — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Unrealized gain o
derivative
instruments, ne
of tax — — — — — — 0.2 — 0.2
Net income — — — — — 6.8 — 0.9 7.7
Balance at April 2,
2011 94,75( 674 $395.¢ $ (2.1) $ 40.t $113: 3 (7€) $ 12.¢ $552.
Balance at
December 31, 2011 95,10! 674 $395¢ $ (21) $ 42¢€ $14471 3 247 $ 124 $568.C
Share-based
compensatiol — — — — 0.8 — — — 0.8
Distributions to non-
controlling interest: — — — — — — — (1.7 (1.7)
Comprehensive income
Currency
translation
adjustmen — — — — — — 8.2 (0.2 8.2
Pension benefit
plan, net of ta; — — — — — — (0.5 — (0.5
Unrealized loss o1
derivative
instruments, ne
of tax — — — — — — (0.3 — (0.3
Net income — — — — — 5.¢ — 0.2 6.8
Balance at March 31,
2012 95,10! 674 $395.¢ $ (2.1) $ 434 $150.C $ (A7.2) $ 12.1 $582.]

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofél@msolidated financial statements.
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Cott Corporation
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Unaudited

Note 1 — Business and Recent Accounting Pronouncente
Description of Busines:

” ou ” ” ou ”

Cott Corporation, together with its consolidatedsidiaries (“Cott,” “the Company,” “our Company,Cbtt Corporation,” “we,” “us,’or
“our”), is one of the world’s largest beverage camigs focusing on private-label products and cehtranufacturing. Our product lines
include carbonated soft drinks (“CSDs"), clearl] sind sparkling flavored waters, energy-relateidids, juice, juice-based products, bottled
water and ready-to-drink teas.

Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying interim unaudited consolidatedrfaial statements have been prepared in accordatitéhe instructions to Form
10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X and in ac@orce with U.S. generally accepted accounting glasi(“GAAP”) for interim financial
reporting. Accordingly, they do not include allanfnation and notes presented in the annual corsgetidinancial statements in conformity
with U.S. GAAP. In the opinion of management, ajustments (consisting of normal recurring acciuetsisidered necessary for a fair
statement of our results of operations for therintgoeriods reported and of our financial conditasnof the date of the interim balance sheet
have been included. This Quarterly Report on Fobr@QlIshould be read in conjunction with the annualit®d consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes in our Annuabi®ep Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,12The accounting policies used
in these interim consolidated financial statemanésconsistent with those used in the annual citedet! financial statements.

The presentation of these interim consolidatedniine statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP re@si management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the amoeptsted in the consolidated financial statemendsaatompanying notes.

During the first quarter of 2012, we recorded ofiperiod adjustments which increased income befareme taxes by approximately
$1.0 million, which related to 2011 and were asated with accounts payable and accrued liabilitds.evaluated the total out-of-period
adjustments in relation to the current period, Wwhicwhen the adjustments were recorded, as wéleaperiod in which they originated and
concluded that these adjustments are not mater&ither the consolidated quarterly or annual fai@rstatements for all impacted periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
ASU 201-05— Comprehensive Income: Presentation of Compste Income

In June 2011, the Financial Accounting Standardsr8¢‘FASB”) amended its guidance on the presemati comprehensive income
in financial statements to improve the comparahitibnsistency and transparency of financial repgrand to increase the prominence of
items that are recorded in other comprehensiveniecd he new accounting guidance requires entitiesfgort components of comprehensive
income in either (i) a continuous statement of caghpnsive income or (ii) two separate but conseediatements. The provisions of this
new guidance are effective for fiscal years, anerim periods within those years, beginning aftec@€mber 15, 2011. We have adopted this
guidance and presented the components of compiigheénsome in two separate but consecutive statésnéhis standard impacts the
presentation and does not have a financial impaciup consolidated financial statements.

ASU 201-08— Intangibles-Goodwill and Other: Testing Godtfair Impairment

In September 2011, the FASB amended its guidanoegiards to testing goodwill for impairment to agkir concern raised about the
cost and complexity of performing the first stegtod two-step goodwill impairment test required @ndccounting Standards Codification
(“ASC") Topic 350 — “Intangibles-Goodwill and OtHeiThe objective of this update is to simplify hantities, both public and nonpublic,
test goodwill for impairment. The amendments indpeate permit an entity to first assess qualiéatactors to determine whether it is more
likely than not that the fair value of a reportimgit is less than its carrying amount as a basisétermining whether it is necessary to peri
the two-step goodwill impairment test described apic 350. The more-likely-than-not threshold idiked as having a likelihood of more
than 50 percent. The amendments are effectivenfiona and interim goodwill impairment tests perfedhfor fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2011. We have adopted this guidardar@ncurrently evaluating the impact on our cadstéd financial statements.

Note 2 — Acquisitions

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosutiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”)
and its affiliated companies for approximately $80illion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred coderation to be paid over three years, of
which $4.7 million was paid during the third quamé¢ 2011, and contingent consideration of up t6.85nillion (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”).
The first $15.0 million of the contingent considiwa was based upon the achievement of milestonesrtain expansion projects in 2010,
which were achieved in 2010. The remainder of thringent consideration was based on the achievieoi@ertain performance measures
during the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011.



Table of Contents

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20Catt made interim payments to the seller equ&ltb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was ofed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resultref final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roitliin settlement of certain of the seller’s objews to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth®calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeTl he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in ante payable to the seller that vary materiallyrfrour current estimated fair value. We are
currently unable to predict the ultimate outcoméehig action. Any changes in the fair value of ¢agent consideration will be recorded in
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

During the first quarter of 2012, our United Kingud“U.K.”) reporting segment acquired a beverage wholesale business based in
Scotland for $5.0 million. The identified asset$jeh included inventory, property, plant and equimm and intangibles, were recorded at
their estimated fair values per preliminary valoas and may change based on final valuations. Gpeisition did not have a material impact
on our financial statements.

Note 3 — Share-Based Compensation

The table below summarizes the share-based contpansapense for the three months ended March @12 2nd April 2, 2011. This
sharebased compensation expense was recorded in sgjiéngral, and administrative expenses in our Catateld Statements of Operatio
As used below: (i) “Performance-based RSUs” meatricted share units with performance-based vesjingted under the Company’s 2010
Equity Incentive Plan (the “2010 Equity Incentivia®), (ii) “Time-based RSUs” mean restricted shanés with time-based vesting granted
under the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan, and (iii)d&t options” mean non-qualified stock options geaninder the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan
and the Restated 1986 Common Share Option Plafil@& Option Plan”).

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
Stock options $ 0.1 $ —

Performanc-based RSU — 0.5
Time-based RSU 0.7 0.6
Total $ 0.8 $ 1.1
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As of March 31, 2012, the unrecognized share-basetbensation expense and years we expect to reeogsifuture compensation
expense were as follows:

Weighted average year
Unrecognized sharebasec
compensation expense as expected to recognize

(in millions of U.S. dollars of March 31, 2012 compensation
Stock options $ iLE 2.8
Performanc-based RSU 2.1 2.8
Time-based RSU 5.8 1.8
Total $ 9.4

Stock option activity for the three months endedde31, 2012 was as follows:

Weighted averagt

Shares exercise price

(in thousands (Canadian $
Balance at December 31, 2011 284 $ 20.47
Awarded 38t 6.5¢

Exercisec — —
Forfeited or expires (25 29.9¢
Outstanding at March 31, 20: 644 10.2¢
Exercisable at March 31, 20. 25¢ $ 19.5¢

During the three months ended March 31, 2012 Pedace-based RSU and Time-based RSU activity whdlaws:

Number of Number of
Performance- Time-basec
(in thousands of share based RSUs RSUs
Balance at December 31, 2011 2,31¢ 1,54¢
Awarded 331 44z
Forfeited (49 (29)
Outstanding at March 31, 20: 2,601 1,961

Stock options awarded during the three months eMiedh 31, 2012 were granted under the 2010 Edndgntive Plan. Stock options
outstanding at December 31, 2011 were granted uhd&B886 Option Plan. The board terminated the I98%on Plan, effective as of
February 23, 2011. In connection with the termoranf the 1986 Option Plan, outstanding option$ eghtinue in accordance with the terms
of the 1986 Option Plan until exercised, forfeitederminated, as applicable. No further award$vélgranted under the 1986 Option Plan.

10
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Average Canadian to U.S. Dollar Exchange Rate fohe Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

The weighted average exercise prices for optiomdoite 3 are disclosed in Canadian dollars. Thesthblow represents the average
Canadian dollar to U.S. dollar exchange rate ferttiiee months ended March 31, 2012:

For the Three Months Endec
March 31, 2012

Average exchange rate $ 1.001

Note 4 — Income Taxes

Income tax expense was $0.4 million on pretax ire@fm$7.2 million for the three months ended Ma3&h2012, as compared to an
income tax expense of $1.6 million on pretax incah$9.3 million for the three months ended Apri®11. The first quarter’s income tax
expense was reduced by an adjustment of $0.9 milétated to an audit settlement. During the seauradter of 2011, we completed a
reorganization of our legal entity structure anfthenced intercompany debt. As a result of theswities, our annual effective tax rate is
expected to be lower than our statutory rate ferdiwrent year.

Note 5 — Net Income Per Common Share

Basic net income per common share is computed\bglidg net income by the weighted-average numbe&oafimon shares outstanding
during the period. Diluted net income per commoarslis calculated using the weighted-average nuwifbaymmon shares outstanding
adjusted to include the effect, if dilutive, of teeercise of in-the-money stock options, Perforneabased RSUs and Time-based RSUs.

A reconciliation of the denominators of the basid diluted net income per common share computat#oas follows:

For the Three Months Ended

(in thousands of share March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
Weighted average number of shares outstandingc bas 94,42’ 94,07¢
Dilutive effect of stock option 30 19¢€
Dilutive effect of Performan«-based RSU 114 43C
Dilutive effect of Time«based RSU 1,131 62€
Adjusted weighted average number of shares outsta- diluted 95,70: 95,32¢

We excluded 183,500 (April 2, 2011 — 354,000) stopkons from the computation of diluted net incopee share because the options’
exercise price was greater than the average mpricet of the common shares. Shares purchased @p#remarket and held by independent
trusts are categorized as treasury shares undbécagp accounting rules. We excluded 674,397 (KhrR011 -674,397) treasury shares h
in various trusts in the calculation of basic aifldtdd earnings per share.

11
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Note 6 — Segment Reporting

We produce, package and distribute private-lab&<€ 8lear, still and sparkling flavored waters, rggerelated drinks, juice, juice-
based products, bottled water and ready-to-driak te regional and national grocery, mass-merckaratid wholesale chains and customers
in the dollar convenience and drug channels thrdivghreporting segments — North America (whichluies our U.S. operating segment and
our Canada operating segment), U.K. (which incluesUnited Kingdom reporting unit and our ContitedriEuropean reporting unit),
Mexico, Royal Crown International (“RCI") and Allt@er.

North United

(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended

March 31, 2012

External revenu? $ 4081 $ 992 $ 91 $ 74 $ — $ 523.¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 20.1 3.3 0.4 — — 23.¢
Operating income (los! 17.2 3.2 1.3 1.8 — 21.C
Additions to property, plant & equipme 12.€ 5.C 0.1 — — 17.7
As of March 31, 2012

Property, plant & equipmel $ 3825 $ 984 $ 97 $ — $ — $ 490.¢
Goodwill 125.¢ — — 4.t — 130.:
Intangibles and other ass 3212 14.2 0.4 — — 335.¢
Total asset? 1,209.! 235.( 29.t 13.2 0.7 1,488.(

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttier reporting segments was $4.1 million for tire¢ months ended March 31,

2012.

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentates receivable

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI All Other Total
For the Three Months Ended
April 2, 2011
External revenu? $ 428¢ $ 86 $ 114 $ 7€ $ — $ 534.1
Depreciation and amortizatic 19.7 3.4 0.5 — — 23.€
Operating income (los! 20.¢ 3.C (1.5 2.2 — 24.F
Additions to property, plant & equipme 10.z 2.3 — — — 12.t
As of December 31, 201
Property, plant & equipmel $ 3831 $8.¢ $ 93 $ — $ — % 4827
Goodwill 125.1 — — 4.t — 129.¢
Intangibles and other ass: 326.1 14.¢ 04 — — 341.1
Total asset? 1,231. 237.( 28.4 11.2 0.¢ 1,508.¢

! Intersegment revenue between North America andttiner reporting segments was $4.2 million for tive¢ months ended April 2,

2011.

2 Excludes intersegment receivables, investmentatebs receivable

For the three months ended March 31, 2012, sastmart accounted for 31.6% (April 2, 2011 — 33)@oour total revenues, 36.0%
of our North America reporting segment revenuesri{&p 2011 — 36.7%), 16.8% of our U.K. reportiregsnent revenues (April 2, 2011 —
15.4%), and 24.4% of our Mexico reporting segmerenues (April 2, 2011 — 52.0%).

Credit risk arises from the potential default afustomer in meeting its financial obligations to @sncentrations of credit exposure r
arise with a group of customers that have simii@nemic characteristics or that are located insdrae geographic region. The ability of si
customers to meet obligations would be similarfea®ed by changing economic, political or otherditions. We are not currently aware of
any facts that would create a material credit risk.

12
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Revenues are attributed to operating segments loastek location of the customer. Revenues by dipgraegment were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
United States $ 366.2 $ 388.7
Canade 53.¢ 52.1
United Kingdom 99.7 86.%
Mexico 9.1 11.4
RCI 7.4 7.€
Elimination? (11.9 (12.0

$ 523.¢ $ 534.1

Represents intersegment revenue among our opesaigrgents, of which $4.1 million represents intgmsent revenue between the
North America reporting segment and our other dpegaegments for the three months ended MarcR@®12, and $4.2 milliol
represents intersegment revenue between the Non#riéa reporting segment and our other operatiggsats for the three months
ended April 2, 2011

Revenues by product were as follows:

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $163¢ $ 337 $ 5€ $ — $ 203.1
Juice 133.¢ 3.1 0.1 — 137.1
Concentrate 2.9 0.8 — 7.4 11.1
All other products 107.t 61.€ 3.4 — 172.5
Total $4081 $ 992 $ 91 $ 74 $523c¢

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenu
Carbonated soft drink $156. $ 424 $ 93 $ — $ 208.(
Juice 160.C 2.2 0.8 — 163.C
Concentrate 2.3 0.2 — 7.€ 10.1
All other products 110.2 41.5 1.3 — 153.(
Total $4286 $ 862 $ 114 $ 7.6 $ 5341

13
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Property, plant and equipment by operating seg@m&iof March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 wagllasvt:

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201: December 31, 201
United States $ 334¢ $ 336.2
Canads 477 46.€
United Kingdom 98.4 89.¢
Mexico 9.7 9.3

$ 490.¢ $ 482.%

Note 7 — Inventories
The following table summarizes inventories as oféha3l, 2012 and December 31, 2011;

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201: December 31, 201
Raw materials $ 87 $ 87.:
Finished good 120.t 102.:
Other 20.5 20.4

$ 228 $ 210.(

14
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Note 8 — Intangibles and Other Assets
The following table summarizes intangibles and p#ssets as of March 31, 2012:

March 31, 2012
Accumulated

(in millions of U.S. dollars Cost Amortization Net

Intangibles

Not subject to amortizatic

Rights $ 45.4 $ = $ 45.4

Subject to amortizatio

Customer relationshif $ 367.( $ 124.: $ 2425

Trademark: 28.1 22.1 6.C

Information technolog 68.¢ 55.2 13.€

Other 11.5 6.5 5.C
475.F 208.2 267.%
520.¢ 208.2 312.%

Other Assets

Financing cost $ 23.2 $ 8.t $ 14.7

Deposits 7.2 — 7.2

Other 14 0.2 1.2

31.¢ 8.7 23.1
Total Intangibles & Other Assets $ 552.% $ 216.¢ $ 335.¢

Amortization expense of intangible and other assets $9.0 million for the three months ended M&th2012 and $8.9 million for the
three months ended April 2, 2011.

The estimated amortization expense for intangibles the next five years is:

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Remainder of 201 $ 24.2
2013 30.C
2014 28.1
2015 25.¢
2016 22.€
Thereaftel 136.5

$267.c

Our only intangible asset with an indefinite litdates to the 2001 acquisition of intellectual @y from Royal Crown Company, Inc.
including the right to manufacture our concentratgth all related inventions, processes, technielgechnical and manufacturing
information, know-how and the use of the Royal Qndwand outside of North America and Mexico (thégiRs”). The Rights are not subject
to amortization.
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Note 9 — Debt
Our total debt as of March 31, 2012 and DecembgeP@11 was as follows:

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201 December 31, 201
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.C $ 215.(
8.125% senior notes due in 2C 375.( 375.(
GE obligation 11.4 12.¢
Other capital lease 4.3 4.1
Other deb 175 g
Total debt 607.Z 608.(
Less: Current det
GE obligation- current maturitie: 1.7 2.€
Other capital lease- current maturitie: 0.€ 0.€
Other deb- current maturitie: 0.2 0.2
Total current debt 2.5 3.4
Long-term debt before discou 604.7 604.¢
Less discount on 8.375% no! (2.9 (2.5)
Total long-term debt $ 602.: $ 602.7

! Our 8.375% senior notes were issued at a discdun#85% on November 13, 20C

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémvgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thatteckan asset-based lending
credit facility (the “ABL facility”) to provide firancing for our North America, U.K. and Mexico refpog segments. In connection with the
Cliffstar Acquisition, we refinanced the ABL fadilion August 17, 2010 to, among other things, gtevor the Cliffstar Acquisition, the
issuance of $375.0 million of 8.125% senior nokeg aire due on September 1, 2018 (the “2018 Nog&sl)the application of net proceeds
therefrom, the underwritten public offering of 1803000 common shares at a price of $5.67 per stmat¢he application of net proceeds
therefrom and to increase the amount availabl®édorowings to $275.0 million. We drew down a pantiaf the indebtedness under the ABL
facility in order to fund the Cliffstar AcquisitiotWe incurred $5.4 million of financing fees in c@ttion with the refinancing of the ABL
facility. The financing fees are being amortizethgghe straight line method over a four-year pagrighich represents the duration of the
ABL facility.

As of March 31, 2012, we had no outstanding bomgwiunder the ABL facility. The commitment fee va5% per annum of the
unused commitment, which was $263.9 million as afrdh 31, 2012.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued the 2018 Notes. 3heer of the 2018 Notes is our wholiwned subsidiary Cott Beverages Inc., but
and most of our U.S., Canadian and U.K. subsidiagiearantee the 2018 Notes. The interest on th& R01es is payable semi-annually on
March 1st and Septembersl of each year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cortien with the issuance of the 2018 Notes. Therfoireg fees are being amortized
using the effective interest method over an eigdaryperiod, which represents the duration of tHeE820otes.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 millionenfiar notes that are due on November 15, 2017207 Notes”).The 2017 Note
were issued at a $3.1 million discount. The issdi¢he 2017 Notes is Cott Beverages Inc., but wkraost of our U.S., Canadian and U.K.
subsidiaries guarantee the 2017 Notes. The interetite 2017 Notes is payable semi-annually on V& and November 18 of each year.
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We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in cortien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies

We are subject to various claims and legal procegdith respect to matters such as governmergalations, and other actions aris
out of the normal course of business. Managemdigves that the resolution of these matters witlimave a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations, or céelv.

We are currently involved in legal matters relai@aarious contract disputes. We intend to vigolpdsfend against all claims in these
lawsuits; however, we are presently unable to ptete ultimate outcome of these actions.

As of December 31, 2011, our accrued liability Ifigation contingencies with a probable likelihooflloss was $2.9 million related t
single contingency. We settled this legal matteraio amount not materially different than our aectiliability.

On August 17, 2010, we completed the Cliffstar Asiion. The first $15.0 million of the maximum $65.0 million of contingent
consideration was based upon the achievement ektailes in certain expansion projects in 2010, mvvere achieved in 2010. The
remainder of the contingent consideration was basgetie achievement of certain performance measiunasg the fiscal year ended
January 1, 2011.

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceaswees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertgddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagembntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. The seller's remaining objections to the @aliton of the contingent consideration are subjeen ongoing binding arbitration process
under the terms of the asset purchase agreemenseller is seeking up to $12.1 million in addigboontingent consideration. The final
resolution of these matters may result in amouayaple to the seller that vary materially from ourrent estimated fair value. We are
currently unable to predict the ultimate outcoméhid action. Any changes in the fair value of aogent consideration will be recorded in
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We had $11.1 million in standby letters of creditstanding as of March 31, 2012 (April 2, 2011 A%%illion).

Note 11 — Shares Held in Trust treated as Treasur§hares

In May 2008, an independent trustee acting undeaiceof our benefit plans purchased 2.3 millioroaf common shares to be used to
satisfy future liabilities under the Amended angfted Performance Share Unit Plan (the “PSU Plamd)the Restated Executive Incentive
Share Purchase Plan (the “Restated EISPP"). Asas€iM31, 2012, 0.7 million shares were held intfraisd accounted for as treasury shares
under applicable accounting rules. Treasury stemeseported at cost.

Subsequent to the adoption of the 2010 Equity ltieerrlan on May 4, 2010, the Human Resources amdp@nsation Committee of
the Board of Directors determined that certain oft® long-term incentive plans were no longer rezkdnd terminated the PSU Plan and the
Restated EISPP effective February 23, 2011. Nondurawards will be granted under such plans, asdwtwards will be made under the
Company’s 2010 Equity Incentive Plan. On May 1,20dur Board of Directors authorized the repurchaagp to $35 million of our
common shares in the open market or through ptivaggotiated transactions over a 12-month petiodugh either a 10b5-1 automatic
trading plan or at managementliscretion. The timing and actual number of shatechased will depend on a variety of factorhagprice
corporate and regulatory requirements, and prexaitiarket conditions. We may terminate or limit $here repurchase program at any time
without prior notice.

Note 12 — Hedging Transactions and Derivative Finasial Instruments

We are directly and indirectly affected by chanigeforeign currency market conditions. These changanarket conditions may
adversely impact our financial performance andreferred to as market risks. When deemed apprefdnamanagement, we use derivatives
as a risk management tool to mitigate the potemtiphct of foreign currency market risks.

We purchase forward contract derivative instrumentsward contracts are agreements to buy or splbatity of a currency at a
predetermined future date, and at a predetermattedor price. We do not enter into derivative ficiahinstruments for trading purposes.

All derivatives are carried at fair value in therSolidated Balance Sheets in the line item accquapable and accrued liabilities. The
carrying values of the derivatives reflect the ictpaf legally enforceable agreements with the saowmterparties. These allow us to net si
positive and negative positions (assets and ltas)i arising from different transactions with $@me counterparty.

The accounting for gains and losses that resutt thanges in the fair values of derivative instroteelepends on whether the
derivatives have been designated and qualify agihgdnstruments and the types of hedging relalignss The changes in fair values of
derivatives that have been designated and qualifyaah flow hedges are recorded in accumulated
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other comprehensive income (loss) (“AOCI”) and r@assified into the line item in the Consolidagtdtements of Operations in which the
hedged items are recorded in the same period ttgelatems affect earnings. Due to the high degfedfectiveness between the hedging
instruments and the underlying exposures beingdabdlctuations in the value of the derivativetinments are generally offset by changes
in the fair values or cash flows of the underly@gposures being hedged.

We formally designate and document, at inceptioa financial instrument as a hedge of a specifaeudging exposure, the risk
management objective and the strategy for undegetkie hedge transaction. In addition, we formatigess both at the inception and at least
quarterly thereafter, whether the financial instemmts used in hedging transactions are effectieéfsgtting changes in either the fair value
cash flows of the related underlying exposures. ie§fective portion of a financial instrument’'sarige in fair value is immediately
recognized into earnings.

We estimate the fair values of our derivatives basequoted market prices or pricing models usingent market rates (refer to
Note 13). The notional amounts of the derivativeficial instruments do not necessarily representiats exchanged by the parties ¢
therefore, are not a direct measure of our expasutfee financial risks described above. The anmarthanged are calculated by referen
the notional amounts and by other terms of thevdévies, such as interest rates, foreign curremcihange rates or other financial indices.
do not view the fair values of our derivativessolation, but rather in relation to the fair valwesash flows of the underlying hedged
transactions. All of our derivatives are straightfard over-the-counter instruments with liquid metgk

Credit Risk Associated with Derivatives

We have established strict counterparty creditgjiids and enter into transactions only with finahinstitutions of investment grade
better. We mitigate pre-settlement risk by beingmptted to net settle for transactions with the sataunterparty.

Cash Flow Hedging Strategy

We use cash flow hedges to minimize the variabititgash flows of assets or liabilities or foreeastransactions caused by fluctuations
in foreign currency exchange rates. The changéseiffair values of derivatives designated as clast fiedges are recorded in AOCI and are
reclassified into the line item in the Consolida&tdtements of Operations in which the hedged iwmsecorded in the same period the
hedged items affect earnings. The changes in #ireg of hedges that are determined to be inefieatie immediately reclassified from
AOCI into earnings. We did not discontinue any ctiaiv hedging relationships during the three morghded March 31, 2012. The
maximum length of time over which we hedge our exype to future cash flows is typically one year.

We maintain a foreign currency cash flow hedginggpam to reduce the risk that our procurement gietswwill be adversely affected
by changes in foreign currency exchange rates. M eto forward contracts to hedge certain pogiof forecasted cash flows denominated
in foreign currencies. When the U.S. dollar strbegs significantly against foreign currencies,dbeline in the present value of future
foreign currency cash flows is partially offsetdpins in the fair value of the derivative instrurtseiConversely, when the U.S. dollar weal
as compared to other currencies, the increaseipréssent value of future foreign currency caswslés partially offset by losses in the fair
value of the derivative instruments. The total owél value of derivatives that have been designateldqualify for our foreign currency cash
flow hedging program as of March 31, 2012 was axprately $15.2 million.

The fair value of the Company’s derivative instrunniabilities was $0.3 million as of March 31, 201

The settlement of our derivative instruments reslih a charge to cost of sales of less than $dlibmfor the three months ended
March 31, 2012.

Note 13 — Fair Value Measurements

ASC No. 820 defines fair value as the exchangesfhat would be received for an asset or paidatasfer a liability (an exit price) in
the principal or most advantageous market for §setor liability in an orderly transaction betwaearket participants at the measurement
date. Additionally, the inputs used to measureviaiue are prioritized based on a three-level hidna This hierarchy requires entities to
maximize the use of observable inputs and minirtlirzeuse of unobservable inputs.

The three levels of inputs used to measure fairevate as follows:
* Level 1- Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.
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» Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prilceluded in Level 1, such as quoted prices fimilar assets and liabilities in
active markets; quoted prices for identical or massets and liabilities in markets that areawtive; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observablkendata

» Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supportelitthy or no market activity and that are signéfit to the fair value of the assets
or liabilities. This includes certain pricing moggtliscounted cash flow methodologies and simdahniques that use significant
unobservable input:

We have certain assets and liabilities that araired to be recorded at fair value on a recurriagi®in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

March 31, 2012

(in millions of U.S. dollars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Netting Adjustment Fair Value Measurement
Liabilities

Derivatives $— $ 0.2 $— $ — $ 0.3
Total Liabilities $— $ 0.3 $— $ — $ 0.3

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts reflected in the Consolid&athnce Sheets for cash, receivables, payables;tem borrowings and long-term
debt approximate their respective fair values, pkes otherwise indicated. The carrying valuesestoinated fair values of our significant
outstanding debt as of March 31, 2012 and Deceibe2011 were as follows:

March 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
8.375% senior notes due in 2017 $ 215.( $ 232t $ 215.C 231.¢
8.125% senior notes due in 2Ct 375.( 405.¢ 375.( 404.k
Total $ 590.( $ 638.4 $ 590.( $ 635.¢

The fair values are based on the trading levelshéaidffer prices observed by a market participamd are considered Level 1 inpt

Fair value of contingent consideration

We were notified on May 9, 2011 by the seller aff€ar of certain objections to the performanceamees used to calculate the
contingent consideration, and the seller assertddim for amounts in excess of the amounts accagetbntingent consideration at July 2,
2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 20Ca{t made interim payments to the seller equ&ktb.0 million and $8.6 million,
respectively. The payment of $21.0 million was afed $4.7 million refund due to Cott as a resulttef final determination of working capit
and the payment of $8.6 million included $0.9 roifliin settlement of certain of the seller's objees to the calculation of the contingent
consideration. The seller’s remaining objectionth calculation of the contingent consideratiom subject to an ongoing binding arbitration
process under the terms of the asset purchasenagmeeT he seller is seeking up to $12.1 milliomdditional contingent consideration. The
final resolution of these matters may result in anis payable to the seller that vary materiallyrfrour current estimated fair value. We are
currently unable to predict the ultimate outcoméehig action. Any changes in the fair value of ¢agent consideration will be recorded in
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Note 14 — Guarantor Subsidiaries

The 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes issued by our whmliged subsidiary, Cott Beverages, Inc., are un¢mmdilly guaranteed on a sen
basis pursuant to guarantees by Cott Corporatidrcartain other wholly owned subsidiaries (the “Gundor Subsidiaries”)The guarantees
the Guarantor Subsidiaries are subject to relagabmited circumstances only upon the occurrenceenfain customary conditions.
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We have not presented separate financial stateraadtseparate disclosures have not been providestoung subsidiary guarantors
because management has determined such informatimt material to the holders of the above-memtibnotes.

The following supplemental financial informatiortséorth on an unconsolidated basis, our Balaneeh Statements of Operations
and Cash Flows for Cott Corporation, Cott Beverdges Guarantor Subsidiaries and our other suasas (the “Non-guarantor
Subsidiaries”) The supplemental financial information reflects owestments and those of Cott Beverages Inc.dir thspective subsidiari
using the equity method of accounting.
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne

Cost of sale:

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper

Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipmen:

Operating (loss) income

Other (income) expense, r
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, n

(Loss) income before income tax (benefi
expense and equity income

Income tax (benefit) expen
Equity income
Net income

Less: Net income attributable to non-
controlling interest:

Net income (loss) attributed to Cotl
Corporation

Total other comprehensive income (lo

Comprehensive income (loss) attributed t
Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

Cott Cott Guarantor Non-Guarantor Elimination
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 437 $ 208.1 $ 240% $ 39.7 $ (8.9 $ 523.¢
37.7 176.2 218.2 36. (8.2) 460.
6.C 31.€ 22.5 3.2 — 63.4
8.7 15.¢ 15.C 2.5 — 41.¢
— 0.4 0.2 — — 0.€
(2.7) 15.¢ 7.1 0.7 — 21.(
(0.2) 0.1 — (0.2) — (0.2)
— (2.3 2.3 — — —
0.1 13.7 0.2 — — 14.C
2.7) 4.4 4.6 0.c — 7.2
(0.5) 0.7 0.1 0.1 — 0.4
8.1 1.C 5.1 — (14.2) —
$ 5¢ % 47 $ 9€ % 086 $ (142 $ 6.€
— — — 0. — 0.€
$ 5¢ % 47 $ 96 % 01 $ (1429 $ 5.¢
7.4 17.2 (477.9 50.C 410.% 7.4
$ 13.4 $ 21.€ $ (468.9) $ 49.C $ 396.f $ 13.4
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Condensed Consolidating Statements of Operations

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Revenue, ne
Cost of sale!

Gross profit

Selling, general and administrative exper
Operating (loss) income

Other expense, n
Intercompany interest (income) expense,
Interest expense, n

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefif)ch
equity income (loss)

Income tax expense (benel

Equity income (loss

Net income (loss

Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest:

Net income (loss) attributed to Cott Corporation

Total other comprehensive incor

Comprehensive income attributed to Cott Corporation

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

Cott

Beverage Non- Elimination

Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 41¢ $215( $ 252€ $ 331 $ (85 $ 5341
34.¢ 186.( 223.. 28.7 (8.5) 464.F
7.0 29.C 29.2 4.4 — 69.€
8.2 18.€ 14.¢ 3.5 — 45.1
(1.2) 10.4 14.4 0. — 24.F
0.4 04 — — — 0.8
1.7 - 1.7 - - -
— 13.€ 0.5 0.1 — 14.4
0.1 (3.9 12.2 0.8 — 9.3
1.1 1.3 (0.9 0.1 — 1.6
7.8 1.3 (3.9 - (5.9 -
$ 6.8 $ 39 % 923 $% 0.7 $ B % 7.7
— — — 0.¢ — 0.¢
$ 68 $ (B8 $ 92 $ 02 $ (I 3 6.8
9.3 19.2 104.5 31.z (154.9) .9
$ 16.1 $ 154 $ 113 $ 31.C $ (1596 $ 16.7
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

ASSETS

Current asset:

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term deb
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pe
Treasury stocl
Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince

Total Cott Corporation equit
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

As of March 31, 2012

Cott Non- Elimination

Cott Beverage: Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 9C % 17 $ 137 $ 72 % — $ 31.€
22.€ 97.¢ 150. 14.€ (50.7) 234.¢
— 8.€ 0.8 — — 9.4
19.¢ 71.¢€ 126.¢ 9.6 — 228.t
1.€ 14.2 5.2 0.1 — 21.1
53.2 194.: 296.¢ 31.¢ (50.7) 525.2
49.1 180.1 251.1 10.: — 490.¢
27.€ 4.5 98.2 — — 130.:
0.9 105.¢ 211.¢ 17.t — 335.¢
4.9 — — 0.1 — 5.C
0.5 — 0.€ — — 1.1
33.C 171.¢ 78.C 41.€ (324.9) —
468.1 385.¢ (443.9 233.¢ (644.5) —
$ 637 $1042.0 $ 492¢ $ 335.F $(1,019.9 $ 1,488.(
$ — $ 2C % 01 $ 04 $ — $ 2.5
23.€ 105.7 149.¢ 17.1 (50.79) 245t
23.€ 107.7 149.¢ 17.E (50.7) 248.(
0.1 599.1 1.2 1.¢ — 602.:
— 27.1 7.C 1.C — 35.1
0.2 3.6 16.4 — — 20.5
43.4 76.5 174.¢ 30.4 (324.9) —
67.2 814.: 348.¢ 50.€ (375.9) 905.¢
395.¢ 574.¢ 895.¢ 175.C (1,645.) 395.¢
(2.2) — — — — (2.1)
43.4 — — — — 43.L
150.C (355.0) (366.9) (44.7) 766.€ 150.(
(17.2) 8.C (384.9) 142.% 234.1 (17.2)
570.( 227.¢ 144.C 272.¢ (644.5) 570.C
— — — 12.1 — 12.1
570.( 227.¢ 144.( 284.7 (644.5) 582.]
$ 637 $1,042. $ 492¢ $ 3355 $(1,019.9 $ 1,488.(
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Consolidating Balance Sheets

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash & cash equivalen

Accounts receivable, net of allowar
Income taxes recoverak

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other as
Total current assets

Property, plant & equipmel
Goodwill

Intangibles and other ass:
Deferred income taxe
Other tax receivabl

Due from affiliates
Investments in subsidiari

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current liabilities

Current maturities of lor-term debt
Accounts payable and accrued liabilit

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Due to affiliates

Total liabilities

Equity

Capital stock, no pz
Treasury stocl
Additional paic-in-capital
Retained earnings (defic

Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) ince

Total Cott Corporation equit
Non-controlling interest:

Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

As of December 31, 2011

Cott Non- Elimination

Cott Beverage: Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 137 $ 207 $ 58¢ $ 7€ % — $ 100.¢
22.4 97.2 136.% 14.€ (59.7) 210.¢
— 8.8 0.8 0.2 — 9.¢
18.1 60.z 124 7.5 — 210.C
1.8 13.€ 3.€ 0.1 — 19.c
56.C 200.7 323.¢ 30.1 (59.7) 550.¢
48.C 179.: 245.] 9.8 — 482.2
26.€ 4.5 98.2 — — 129.¢
0. 105.c 216.5 18.4 — 341.1
4.1 — — — — 4.1
0.5 — 0.5 — — 1.C
30.2 166.4 79.1 41.€ (317.%) —
459.¢ 365.5 572.: 225.: (1,622.9 —
$ 626 $1021.° $1535f8 $ 3258 $(2,000.) $ 1,508.¢
$ — $ 28 % 01 $ 04 $ — $ 3.4
27.1 117.1 181.2 15.4 (59.9) 281.1
27.1 120.( 181.: 15.¢ (59.7) 284.F
0.2 599.( 1.2 1.7 — 602.1
— 26.¢ 6.8 0.t — 34.1
0.2 3.5 16.: — — 20.C
43.2 77.€ 168.¢ 27.€ (317.9) —
70.7 827.1 374.F 45.¢ (377.9) 940.7
395.¢ 569.: 1,396.t 218.2 (2,184.() 395.¢
(2.2) — — — — (2.2)
42.€ — — — — 42.€
144.1 (365.5) (329.0) (43.2) 737.1 144.1
(24.7) (9.2) 93. 92.2 (176.6) (24.7)
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 267.3 (1,622.9 555.¢
— — — 12.4 — 12.4
555.¢ 194.¢ 1,161.( 279.1 (1,622.9 568.2
$ 6265 $1,021.° $1535f8 $ 3255 $2,000.) $ 1,508.¢
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)

Unaudited
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012
Non- Elimination
Cott Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Beverages Inc Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
Operating Activities

Net income $ 5.¢ $ 4.7 $ 9.€ $ 0.8 $ (142 $ 6.8
Depreciation & amortizatio 1.€ 8.8 12.C 1.4 — 23.¢
Amortization of financing fee 0.1 1.C 0.1 — — 1.2
Shar-based compensation expel 0.1 0.t 0.2 — — 0.8
Increase (decrease) in deferred income

taxes 0.4 (0.7) 0.2 0.1 — —
Loss on disposal of property, plant &

equipmen: — 0.4 0.2 — — 0.€
Equity (loss) income, net of

distributions (8.1 (1.0) (5.1 — (14.2) —
Intercompany transactiol 4.2 1.2 — — (5.4 —
Other nor-cash item: (0.9 — — — — (0.9
Net change in operating assets and

liabilities, net of acquisitiol (9.9 (19.5 (52.7) 0.8 5.4 (75.9)
Net cash (used in) provided by

operating activitie: (6.1) (4.6) (35.5) 3.1 — (43.0)
Investing Activities
Acquisition — — (5.0 — — (5.0
Additions to property, plant &

equipmen: (1.5 (11.7 (5.0 (0.2 — (17.9)
Additions to intangibles and other

assett — (2.2 (0.5 — — (2.7)
Advances to affiliate — — — (2.6) 2.€ —
Net cash used in investing activit| (1.5) (13.9) (10.5) (2.7 2.€ (25.4)
Financing Activities
Payments of lor-term deb! — (1.7 — (0.7) — (1.2
Borrowings under ABL — 7.C — — — 7.C
Payments under AB — (7.0 — — — (7.0
Advances from affiliate 2.€ — — — (2.6) —
Distributions to non-controlling

interests — — — (1.7) — (1.7)
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities 2.€ 1.0 — (1.2 (2.6) (2.3
Effect of exchange rate changes on i 0.3 — 0.€ 0.4 — 1t
Net decrease in cash & cas

equivalents (4.7) (19.0 (45.2) (0.4 — (69.9)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning

of period 13.7 20.7 58.¢ 7.€ — 100.¢
Cash & cash equivalents, end ¢

period $ 9.C $ 1.7 $ 13.7 $ 7.2 $ — $ 31.€
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Consolidating Statements of Condensed Cash Flows

(in millions of U.S. dollars)
Unaudited

Operating activities

Net income (loss

Depreciation & amortizatio

Amortization of financing fee

Shar-based compensation expel

Increase (decrease) in deferred income
taxes

Equity (loss) income, net of distributio

Intercompany transactiol

Other nor-cash item:

Net change in operating assets and
liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operatin
activities

Investing activities

Additions to property, plant & equipme

Proceeds from sale of property, plant &
equipmen

Advances to affiliate

Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities

Financing activities

Payments of lor-term deb!

Borrowings under ABL

Payments under AB

Advances from affiliate

Distributions to no-controlling interest:

Net cash provided by (used in) financin
activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net (decrease) increase in cash & cash
equivalents

Cash & cash equivalents, beginning ¢
period

Cash & cash equivalents, end of perio

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

Cott
Beverage Non- Elimination

Cott Guarantor Guarantor
Corporation Inc. Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Entries Consolidatec
$ 6.8 $ 38 $ 9z $ 07 $ 53 % 7.7
1.€ 8.€ 11.¢ 1.t — 23.€
0.1 0.7 0.1 — — 0.¢
0.1 0.7 0.2 — — 1.1
0.2 1.1 (0.5) — — 0.
(7.9) 1.9 3.8 — K —
4.€ 1.€ — — (6.2) —
0.4 (0.2) - - - 0.2
(32.9) (45.2) 4.8 6.5 6.2 (60.0)
(26.2) (37.6) 29.7 8.7 = (25.6)
(0.7) (8.0 (3.9 — — (12.5)
— — 0.1 — — 0.1
19.€ — (12.4) (6.0) (1.4) —
19.1 (8.0) (16.1) (6.0) (1.4) (12.4)
— (1.3 — — — (1.3
- 99.¢ - - - 99.¢
— (72.5) — — — (72.5)
6.C 12.4 (19.9) — 1.4 —
— — — (1.6) — (1.6)
6.C 38.4 (19.6) (1.6) 1.4 24.4
0.3 — 0.8 0.1 — 1.2
(0.6) (7.4) (5.4) 1.2 = (12.9)
7.8 9.1 26.C 5.2 — 48.2
$ 7.C $ 1.7 $ 20.€ $ 6.5 $ — $ 35.¢
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Item 2. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Famcial Condition and Results of Operations

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firer@ondition and Results of Operations is intenttefiirther the reader’s
understanding of the consolidated financial conditind results of operations of our Company. lushbe read in conjunction with the
financial statements included in this quarterlyotn Form 10-Q and our annual report on Form 1foikthe year ended December 31, 2011
(the “2011 Annual Report”). These historical finaistatements may not be indicative of our futpeeformance. This discussion contains a
number of forward-looking statements, all of whaale based on our current expectations and couddfbeted by the uncertainties and risks
referred to under “Risk Factors” in Item 1A in &011 Annual Report.

Overview

We are one of the world’s largest beverage compgdoi@using on private-label and contract manufaeguiOur objective of creating
sustainable long-term growth in revenue and prioiity is predicated on working closely with outa#der partners to provide proven
profitable products. As a “fast follower” of innawge products, our goal is to identify which nevogucts are succeeding in the marketplace
and develop similar private label products to pdevour retail partners and their consumers with lojigality products at a better value. This
objective is increasingly relevant in more difficatonomic times.

The beverage market is subject to some seasonativas. Our beverage sales are generally higheéngithe warmer months and also
can be influenced by the timing of holidays and therafluctuations. This seasonality also causesmauiking capital needs to fluctuate, with
inventory being higher in the first half of the yéa meet the peak summer demand and accountyabteideclining in the fall as customers
pay their higher-than-average outstanding balafroes the summer deliveries.

We typically operate at low margins and therefalatively small changes in cost structures can niadligimpact results.

Ingredient and packaging costs represent a sigmifiportion of our cost of sales. These costs @gest to global and regional
commodity price trends. Our largest commoditiesadweninum for cans and ends, resin for polyethykemephthalate bottles, preforms and
caps, corn for high fructose corn syrup (“HFCStjitfand fruit concentrates. We attempt to managesgposure to fluctuations in ingredient
and packaging costs of our products by implemercge increases as needed and entering into fiked commitments for a portion of our
ingredient and packaging requirements. We haveethiato fixed price commitments for a majorityafr forecasted aluminum and fruit
requirements for the remainder of 2012, as wedl pertion of our aluminum and fruit requirements2013. We have entered into fixed price
commitments for all of our HFCS requirements fol 20

On August 17, 2010, we completed the acquisitiosutiistantially all of the assets and liabilitieCtiffstar Corporation (“Cliffstar”)
and its affiliated companies for approximately $80&iillion in cash, $14.0 million in deferred cothsiation to be paid over three years, of
which $4.7 million was paid during the third quamé 2011, and contingent consideration of up t6.@5nillion (the “Cliffstar Acquisition”).
The first $15.0 million of the contingent considima was based upon the achievement of milestanesrtain expansion projects in 2010,
which were achieved in 2010. The remainder of tr@ingent consideration was based on the achievieofieertain performance measures
during the fiscal year ended January 1, 2011. €Hersof Cliffstar notified us of certain objecti®to the performance measures used to
calculate the contingent consideration and suckabiojns to the calculation of the contingent coesition are subject to an ongoing binding
arbitration process under the terms of the asgehpse agreement. The seller is seeking up to $a#litn in additional contingent
consideration. The final resolution of these mattaay result in amounts payable to the sellenthat materially from our current estimated
fair value of payments previously made to the saitaounting to $34.3 million. We are currently uleeto predict the ultimate outcome of
this action.

We supply Walmart and its affiliated companies,emahnual non-exclusive supply agreements, witargety of products in the United
States, Canada, U.K. and Mexico, including carbexhabft drinks (“CSDs"), clear, still and sparklifigvored waters, juice, juice-based
products, bottled water, energy drinks and readgriiok teas. During the first three months of 2042, supplied Walmart with all of its
private label CSDs in the United States. In theneVéalmart were to utilize additional supplierddfill a portion of its requirements for such
products, our operating results could be matereadyersely affected. Sales to Walmart for the thmeaths ended March 31, 2012 and
April 2, 2011 accounted for 31.6% and 33.0% ofltmaenue.
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Summary financial results

Our net income for the three months ended Marct2812 (the “first quarter”) was $5.9 million or $6.per diluted share, compared
with net income of $6.8 million or $0.07 per dildtehare for the three months ended April 2, 2011.

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the first quarter of 2012:

. our revenue decreased 1.9% from the comparableywar period due primarily to a decline in Norttmérica volume
resulting from the exit of certain case pack watgsiness and the continuing decline in the U.Sf skable juice market.
Absent foreign exchange impact, revenue decrea886 ftom the comparable prior year peri

. our gross profit as a percentage of revenue dettnd2.1% for the first quarter from 13.0% in twmparable prior year
period;

. our filled beverage 8-ounce equivalents (“beveraage volume”) decreased 6.8% during the first g@naltie primarily to
the loss of certain customers resulting from tihatsgic implementation of price increas

. our selling, general and administrative (“SG&A")penses for the first quarter decreased to $411&mirom $45.1
million in the comparable prior year period duenmarily to a reduction of information technology tand professional
fees, offset in part by an increase in certain eygx-related costs

. other income was $0.2 million in the first quatempared to other expense of $0.8 million in thexgarable prior year
period due primarily to foreign exchange gains puiily related to intercompany transactions;

. our income tax expense was $0.4 million comparekiLté million in the comparable prior year peridde primarily to a
favorable audit settlement of $0.9 millic

. our Adjusted Earnings Before Interest Expense, $aRepreciation and Amortization (“EBITDA”) for tHest quarter
increased 2.9% to $46.1 million from $44.8 millionthe comparable prior year peric

The following items of significance impacted onaficial results for the first quarter of 2011:

. the Cliffstar Acquisition contributed $166.3 miltido revenue in the first quarter of 20:

. our revenue increased 47.2% from the comparabde pear period. Absent foreign exchange impactmere increased
45.8% in the first quarter, due to the Cliffstargiiisition. Excluding the impact of the Cliffstar duisition and the impact
of foreign exchange, revenue was f

. our gross profit as a percentage of revenue dettnd3.0% for the first quarter compared to 15f8%the comparable
prior year period due primarily to higher commodityd freight costs

. our beverage case volume increased 22.5% due isirt@athe Cliffstar Acquisition which contributesl 30.1% increase in
the North America operating segme

. our SG&A expenses increased to $45.1 million fr&38.8 million in the comparable prior year periodegrimarily to the
Cliffstar Acquisition, information technology costertain employee related costs and professieesl,

. our interest expense increased to $14.4 milliomf&5.2 million in the comparable prior year perethe primarily to the
issuance of $375.0 million of senior notes thatdare on September 1, 2018 (“2018 Note”);

. the decrease in other expense of $1.0 million wesptimarily to the write-off of financing fees $1.4 million in the
comparable prior year period; a

. our income tax expense decreased $2.8 millionerfitht quarter from the comparable prior year @gerdue primarily to
lower pre-tax income

Non-GAAP Measures

In this report, we supplement our reporting of fioial measures determined in accordance with We&emglly accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP”) by utilizing certain non-GAAHRrfancial measures. We exclude the impact of foreighange from GAAP revenues to
separate the impact of currency exchange rate elsangm Cott’s results of operations, and, in secames, by excluding the impact of the
Cliffstar Acquisition. Cott excludes these itemdtiter understand trends in the business andrpact of the Cliffstar Acquisition.

We also utilize EBITDA, which is GAAP earnings befdnterest expense, provision for income taxepratgation and amortization
(“EBITDA"). We consider EBITDA to be an indicatof operating performance because we use it to measurability to service debt, fund
capital expenditures, and expand our business.|¥deuae EBITDA, as do analysts, lenders, investagsothers, to evaluate companies
because it excludes certain items that can varglwiacross different industries or among compawigisin the same industry. These
differences can result in considerable variabilityhe relative costs of productive assets andl#peciation and amortization expense among
companies. We also utilize Adjusted EBITDA as atidgator of operating performance. Our Adjusted HBATreflects inventory step-up
(step-down) adjustments and integration costseaéltt the Cliffstar Acquisition. Adjusted EBITDA exdes these items to make period-over-
period comparisons of our ongoing core operati@isre material charges.

Because Cott uses these adjusted financial résuhe management of its business and to understasidess performance,
management believes this supplemental informatiarséeful to investors for their independent evadmsand understanding of C's busines




performance and the performance of its manageriietnon-GAAP financial measures described abovénaddition to, and not
meant to be considered superior to, or a subsfitufeCott’s financial statements prepared in adaoce with GAAP. In addition, the non-
GAAP financial measures included in this reporta&fmanagement’s judgment of particular items, mwag be different from, and therefore
may not be comparable to, similarly titled measuegp®rted by other companies.
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The following table summarizes our Consolidatedesteents of Operations as a percentage of revemulddhree months ended
March 31, 2012 and April 2, 2011:

For the Three Months Ended

March 31, 2012 April 2, 2011
(in millions of U.S. dollars $ % $ %
Revenue 523.6 100.C 534.1 100.C
Cost of sale: 460.4 87.C 464.t 87.C
Gross profit 63.4 12.1 69.€ 13.C
Selling, general, and administrative exper 41.¢ 8.C 45.1 8.4
Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipm 0.6 0.1 — —
Restructuring — — — —
Operating incom: 21.C 4.C 24.F 4.€
Other (income) expense, r (0.2 — 0.8 0.1
Interest expense, n 14.C 2.7 14.£ 2.8
Income before income tax 7.2 1.3 9.2 1.7
Income tax expens 0.4 0.1 1.€ 0.3
Net income 6.8 1.2 7.7 1.4
Less: Net income attributable to r-controlling interest: 0.9 0.2 0.6 0.1
Net income attributed to Cott Corporati 5.9 1.C 6.8 1.3
Depreciation & amortizatio 23.¢ 4.5 23.€ 4.4

The following table summarizes our revenue and aipeg income (loss) by reporting segment for ttre¢hmonths ended March 31,
2012 and April 2, 2011:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. Dollars March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
Revenus

North America $ 408.1 $ 428.¢
United Kingdom 99.2 86.2
Mexico 9.1 11.4
RCI 7.4 7.€
Total $ 523.¢ $ 534.1
Operating income (los:

North America $ 17.2 $ 20.¢
United Kingdom 3.2 3.C
Mexico 1.3 (1.5
RCI 1.8 2.2
Total $ 21.C $ 24.F

Revenues are attributed to reporting segments lmaséte location of the customer.

29



Table of Contents

The following table summarizes our beverage casenve by reporting segment for the three months édi@rch 31, 2012 and April 2,

2011:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of cases March 31, 201:

Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas+ Total Beverage (including concentra
North America

United Kingdom

Mexico

RCI

Total

Volume8 oz equivalent cast- Filled Beverage
North America

United Kingdom

Mexico

RCI

Total

The following tables summarize revenue and volumproduct for the three months ended March 31, 201RApril 2, 2011:

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

179.¢
44.¢
5.8
71.C

301.¢

156.¢
40.€
5.8

203.2

April 2, 2011

195.]
43.5
8.4
82.5

329.5

170.¢
39.1
8.4

218.]

North United
(in millions of U.S. dollars America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Revenue
Carbonated soft drink $163.¢ $ 33.7 $ 5.€ $— $203.1
Juice 133.¢ 3.1 0.1 — 137.1
Concentrate 2.9 0.8 — 74 11.1
All other products 107.t 61.€ 3.4 — 172.5
Total $408.1 $ 99.C $ 9.1 $74 $523.¢

For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2012

North United
(in millions of physical case: America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
Volume- 8 0z equivalent casr Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink 74.¢ 18.1 4.C — 97.C
Juice 30.4 0.8 0.1 — 31.c
Concentrate 23.2 4.C — 71.C 98.2
All other products 51.1 22.C 1.8 — 74.€
Total 179.¢ 44 ¢ 5.6 71.C 301.¢
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For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

(in millions of U.S. dollars
Revenu

Carbonated soft drink
Juice

Concentrate

All other products

Total

For the Three Months Ended April 2, 2011

(in millions of physical case:

Volume- 8 0z equivalent cas+ Total Beverage (including concentra
Carbonated soft drink

Juice

Concentrate

All other products

Total

Results of operations

North United

America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total

$156.5 $ 424 $ 923 $— $208.(

160.C 2.2 0.8 — 163.C
2.3 0.2 — 7.€ 10.1

110.2 41.5 1.3 — 153.(

$428.6 $ 86.5 $11.4 $7.€ $534.]

North United

America Kingdom Mexico RCI Total
78.7 24.: 6.€ — 109.¢
37.4 0.€ 0.€ — 38.€
24.¢€ 4.t — 82.t 111.€
54.4 14.1 1.2 — 69.7

195.] 43F 84 82F  329F

The following tables summarize the change in reedmureporting segment for the three months endatiM31, 2012 and April 2,

2011:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars

March 31, 2012

North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
Change in revenue $(10.9) $(20.7) $ 12.¢ $ (2.3 $(0.2)
Impact of foreign exchang! 3.2 0.7 1.7 0.8 —
Change excluding foreign exchar $ (7.0 $(20.0 $ 14.€ $ (1.5 $(0.2)
Percentage change in revet -1.%% -4.8% 14.% -20.2% -2.€%
Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgs -1.3% -4.7% 16.% -13.2% -2.€%

1

exchange rates less the current ’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
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(in millions of U.S. dollars

Change in revenue
Impact of foreign exchan¢t

Change excluding foreign exchar

Percentage change in revet

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignasgs
Impact of Cliffstar Acquisitior

Change excluding foreign exchange and Cliffstaruisition

Percentage change in revenue excluding foreignamgiand Cliffstar

Acquisition

For the Three Months Ended

April 2, 2011
North United
Cott America Kingdom Mexico RCI
$1712 $1656 $ 6€ $(04  $0.6
(5.0) (1.9) (2.E) (0.€) —
$ 166.2 $ 163.7 $ 41 $(1.0  $(0.6
47.2% 62.9% 8.2% -3.4% -7.2%
45.8% 62.2% 5.1% -8.5% -7.3%

(166.9) (166.%) — _ —
$ 0) $ (26 $ 41  $(1.0  $0.6

0.C% -1.C% 5.1% -8.5% -7.3%

Impact of foreign exchange is the difference betwibe current year’s revenue translated utilizimg ¢urrent year's average foreign

exchange rates less the current’s revenue translated utilizing the prior y's average foreign exchange ra
The following table summarizes our EBITDA and Adggs EBITDA for the three months ended March 31,28dd April 2, 2011.

(in millions of U.S. dollars

Net income attributed to Cott Corporation
Interest expense, n

Income tax expens

Depreciation & amortizatio

Net income attributable to n-controlling interest:
EBITDA

Acquisition adjustment
Inventory ste-up (ste|-down)
Integration cost

Adjusted EBITDA
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For the Three Months Ended

March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
$ 5.6 $ 6.8
14.C 14.£

04 1.€

23.¢ 23.€

0.9 0.¢

$ 45.C $ 47.%
0.1 (3.2)

1.C 0.7

$ 46.1 $ 44.¢
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Revenue- Revenue decreased $10.3 million or 1.9% in tfs¢ duarter from the comparable prior year periextluding the impact of
foreign exchange, revenue decreased 1.3% in ttegfilarter from the comparable prior year period.

North America revenue decreased $20.7 million 8%4n the first quarter from the comparable prieayperiod due primarily to a
8.3% decrease in beverage case volume in theyfiester from the comparable prior year period. $¢dting price per beverage case (which is
net revenue divided by beverage case volume) isetkd.0% in the first quarter from the comparabieryear period. The increase was due
primarily to price increases implemented duringsbeond quarter of 2011.

U.K. revenue increased $12.9 million or 14.9% ia finst quarter from the comparable prior year @@due primarily to continued
improvement in product mix and growth in the whaleschannel. Net selling price per beverage cageased 10.0% in the first quarter from
the comparable prior year period, due primarilptice increases implemented to mitigate rising camity costs and improved product mix.
Absent foreign exchange impact, U.K. revenue inseddl6.9% in the first quarter.

Mexico revenue decreased $2.3 million or 20.2%énfirst quarter from the comparable prior yeaiqubdue primarily to the loss of a
customer, offset in part by a 13.2% increase irsa#ing price per beverage case in the first guafbsent foreign exchange impact, Mexico
revenue decreased 13.2% in the first quarter.

RCI revenue declined 2.6% in the first quarter friive comparable prior year period. Concentratemeldeclined 13.9% from the
comparable prior year period due primarily to fingrig of shipments and declining sales in the Méddhst. RCI primarily sells concentrate.

Cost of Sales- Cost of sales represented 87.9% of revenue ifirft@uarter, compared to 87.0% in the comparphler year period.
The increase in cost of sales as a percentageefiue was due primarily to higher commodity cogtmiable costs represented 75.8% of t
sales in the first quarter and 75.9% in the comgarprior year period. Major elements of thesealalg costs included ingredient and
packaging costs, distribution costs and fees matHitd-party manufacturers.

Gross Profit— Gross profit as a percentage of revenue decréaseti1% in the first quarter from 13.0% in thengarable prior year
period due primarily to higher commodity costs.

Selling, General and Administrative ExpensesSG&A decreased $3.3 million or 7.3% in the foaarter from the comparable prior
year period. The decrease was due primarily taaatéon to information technology costs and prafasal fees, offset in part by an incre:
of certain employee-related costs. As a percertgevenue, SG&A decreased to 8.0% in the firstrigudrom 8.4% in the comparable prior
year period

Operating Income- Operating income was $21.0 million in the firsager compared to $24.5 million in the comparailer year
period. The decrease was due primarily to lowesgprofit, offset in part by lower SG&A costs.

Other (Income) Expense Other income was $0.2 million in the first quatempared to other expense of $0.8 million in the
comparable prior year period. This increase waspdimearily to foreign exchange gains primarily tteldto intercompany transactions.

Income Taxes- We recorded income tax expense of $0.4 milliothenfirst quarter compared to $1.6 million in twmparable prior
year period. The decrease was due primarily tougit aettlement of $0.9 million. The reorganizatafrour legal entity structure a1
refinancing of intercompany debt during the secguarter of 2011 is expected to result in a rednotibCott’s effective tax rate versus the
statutory rate for the current year.
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Liquidity and Financial Condition

The following table summarizes our cash flows fa three months ended March 31, 2012 and ApriD212as reported in our
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the acaagipg Consolidated Financial Statements:

For the Three Months Ended

(in millions of U.S. dollars March 31, 201: April 2, 2011
Net cash used in operating activit $ (43.1) $ (25.9)
Net cash used in investing activit| (25.9 (12.9)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (2.3 24.L
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢ 1.t 1.2
Net decrease in cash & cash equival (69.9) (12.9)
Cash & cash equivalents, beginning of pel 100.¢ 48.2
Cash & cash equivalents, end of per $ 31.€ $ 35.¢

Financial and Capital Resources and Liquidity

As of March 31, 2012, we had total debt of $607iion and $31.6 million of cash and cash equiviédestompared to $648.2 million of
debt and $35.8 million of cash and cash equivalastsf April 2, 2011.

We believe that our level of resources, which idelsicash on hand, available borrowings under aatdmsed lending credit facility
(the “ABL facility”) and funds provided by operatis, will be adequate to meet our expenses, capip@nditures, and debt service
obligations for the next twelve months. Our abitibygenerate cash to meet our current expensededntcervice obligations will depend on
our future performance. If we do not have enougiihd¢a pay our debt service obligations or if theLABcility, the 8.375% senior notes that
are due on November 15, 2017 (the “2017 Notes")her2018 Notes were to become currently due, réthmaturity or as a result of a
breach, we may be required to take actions suelmasding our ABL facility or the indentures goveigniour 2017 Notes and 2018 Notes,
refinancing all or part of our existing debt, sgjliassets, incurring additional indebtedness singiequity. For periods extending beyond
twelve months, we believe that our ability to gextercash to meet our expenses and debt servigatiblis and to otherwise reduce our debt
as anticipated will depend primarily on our abilityretain a substantial amount of volume fromkey customers and maintain the
profitability of our business. If we do not generatfficient cash from operations or have excebs @ilability to meet our expenses and
debt service obligations or if the ABL facility,et2017 Notes or the 2018 Notes were to becomertiydue, either at maturity or as a result
of a breach, we may be required to take actions as@amending our ABL facility, the indenture gairg the 2017 Notes, or the indenture
governing the 2018 Notes, refinancing all or p&mbar existing debt, selling assets, incurring &iddal indebtedness or raising equity. If we
need to seek additional financing, there is norasse that this additional financing will be avhika

Should we desire to consummate significant acgoisipportunities or undertake significant expansgtivities, our capital needs
would increase and could result in our need toeiase available borrowings under our ABL facilityagcess public or private debt and equity
markets.

As of March 31, 2012, our total availability undbe ABL facility was $275.0 million, which was baken our borrowing base
(accounts receivables, inventory, and fixed asset®f April 15, 2012 (the March month-end undertérms of the credit agreement
governing our ABL facility), and we had no ABL bowings outstanding and $11.1 million in outstandetters of credit. As a result, our
excess availability under the ABL facility was $283nillion. Each month’s borrowing base is not effee until submitted to the lenders,
which usually occurs on the fifteenth day of théoiwing month.

We may, from time to time, depending on market @imas, including without limitation whether the PD Notes or 2018 Notes are tt
trading at discounts to their respective face artmyuapurchase the 2017 Notes or 2018 Notes fdr @ad/or in exchange for shares of our
common stock, warrants, preferred stock, debtleratonsideration, in each case in open markehpses and/or privately negotiated
transactions. The amounts involved in any suctstretions, individually or in aggregate, may be makeHowever, the covenants in our A
facility subject such purchases to certain limitai and conditions.
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Operating activities

Cash used in operating activities was $43.1 mildaning the first quarter compared to $25.6 milliorihe comparable prior year peri
The $17.5 million increase was due primarily toitignof accounts payable and higher commodity cositsventory, offset in part by the
timing of accounts receivable receipts.

Investing activities

Cash used in investing activities was $25.4 milliloming the first quarter compared to $12.4 milliorthe comparable prior year peri
The $13.0 million increase was due primarily tor@ased capital expenditures, and the acquisitientmEverage and wholesale business by
our U.K. reporting segment.

Financing activities

Cash used in financing activities was $2.3 millchmring the first quarter compared to cash provioie$i24.4 million in the comparable
prior year period. The change was due primariljxBb. borrowings in the prior year period.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We had no off-balance sheet arrangements as deafiméer Item 303(a)(4) of Regulation S-K as of MaBdh 2012.

Contractual Obligations

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended December 31,
2011.

Debt
Asset Based Lending Facili

On March 31, 2008, we entered into a credit agreémvgh JPMorgan Chase Bank N.A. as Agent thattecean ABL facility to provid
financing for our North America, U.K. and Mexicoarating segments. In connection with the Cliffftaguisition, we refinanced the ABL
facility on August 17, 2010 to, among other thingsvide for the Cliffstar Acquisition, the issua&naf the 2018 Notes and the application of
net proceeds therefrom, the underwritten publierrffy of 13,340,000 common shares at a price @&7#&per share and the application of net
proceeds therefrom and to increase the amountdaifor borrowings to $275.0 million. We drew dowportion of the indebtedness under
the ABL facility in order to fund the Cliffstar Aeggition. We incurred $5.4 million of financing feé connection with the refinancing of the
ABL facility. The financing fees are being amortizasing the straight line interest method overwa-fgear period, which represents the
duration of the ABL facility.

As of March 31, 2012, we had no outstanding bomowiunder the ABL facility. The commitment fee v@a5% per annum of the
unused commitment, which was $263.9 million as afréh 31, 2012.

8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

On August 17, 2010, we issued $375.0 million of20&48 Notes. The issuer of the 2018 Notes is oully#towned subsidiary Cott
Beverages Inc., but we and most of our U.S., Camaaind U.K. subsidiaries guarantee the 2018 Notesinterest on the 2018 Notes is
payable semi-annually on Marchtl and September kaci year.

We incurred $8.6 million of financing fees in cortien with the 2018 Notes. The financing fees am@ amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2018 Notes.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

On November 13, 2009, we issued $215.0 milliorhef2017 Notes. The 2017 Notes were issued at an$iBidn discount. The issuer
of the 2017 Notes is our wholly-owned subsidiaryt®@zverages Inc., but we and most of our U.S. ad&mn and U.K. subsidiaries guarantee
the 2017 Notes. The interest on the 2017 Noteayalgle semi-annually on May ¥5 and Novembet15 aoheyear.

We incurred $5.1 million of financing fees in contien with the 2017 Notes. The financing fees amd amortized using the effective
interest method over an eight-year period, whigitesents the duration of the 2017 Notes.
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Credit Ratings and Covenant Compliance
Credit Ratings

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended December 31,
2011.

Covenant Compliance
8.125% Senior Notes due in 2018

Under the indenture governing the 2018 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing ltdéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgamy or sell all or substantially all of our
assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into transactidgth affiliates and (vi) sell assets. We haverbieecompliance with all of the covenants
under the 2018 Notes and there have been no ametgltoeany such covenants since the 2018 Notesissred.

8.375% Senior Notes due in 2017

Under the indenture governing the 2017 Notes, wesabject to a number of covenants, including camenthat limit our and certain of
our subsidiaries’ ability, subject to certain extteqps and qualifications, to (i) pay dividends oaka distributions, repurchase equity
securities, prepay subordinated debt or make cerntgestments, (ii) incur additional debt or iss@etain disqualified stock or preferred st
(iii) create or incur liens on assets securing ltdéness, (iv) merge or consolidate with anothemgany or sell all or substantially all of our
assets taken as a whole, (v) enter into transactidgth affiliates and (vi) sell assets. We haverbieecompliance with all of the covenants
under the 2017 Notes and there have been no ametgltoeany such covenants since the 2017 Notesissred.

ABL Facility

Under the credit agreement governing the ABL fagilive and our restricted subsidiaries are suligeatnumber of business and
financial covenants, including a covenant requiamminimum fixed charge coverage ratio of at Idastto 1.0 effective when and if excess
availability is less than the greater of (a) $3@i0ion and (b) the lesser of (i) 12.5% of the ambaf the aggregate borrowing base or
(i) $37.5 million. Although the covenant was noggered as of March 31, 2012, our fixed chargeecage ratio as calculated under this
covenant was greater than 1.1 to 1.0. If availghii less than $37.5 million, the lenders willéakominion over the cash and will apply
excess cash to reduce amounts owing under théyagihe credit agreement governing the ABL fagiliequires us to maintain aggregate
availability of at least $15.0 million. We weredompliance with all of the applicable covenantsamttie ABL facility on March 31, 2012.

Common Share Repurchase Program

On May 1, 2012, our Board of Directors authorizeel tepurchase of up to $35 million of our commoarshk in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions over anbath period through either a 10b5-1 automatiditig plan or at managemesiiscretion
The timing and actual number of shares purchaskdi@pend on a variety of factors such as pricepemte and regulatory requirements, and
prevailing market conditions. We may terminateimitithe share repurchase program at any time witpdor notice.

Capital Structure

Since December 31, 2011, equity has increased 4y $iillion. The increase was the result of nebme of $5.9 million, $0.8 million
of share-based compensation expense, and othereoemsive income of $7.5 million.

Dividend Payments

There are certain restrictions on the paymentwifidnds under our ABL facility and under the indees governing the 2017 Notes and
2018 Notes. No dividends payments were made dahnadirst three months of 2012 or in 2011 and wendibexpect to pay dividends in the
forseeable future.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our critical accounting policies require managemenhake estimates and assumptions that affecefieeted amounts in the
consolidated financial statements and the acconmipgmpotes. These estimates are based on histesipakience, the advice of external
experts or on other assumptions management believ@sreasonable. Where actual amounts differ etimates, revisions are included in
the results for the period in which actuals becémawn. Historically, differences between estimated actuals have not had a significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Critical accounting policies and estimates usegrépare the financial statements are discussedouithudit Committee as they are
implemented and on an annual basis.
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We have no material changes to our Critical AccimgnPolicies and Estimates disclosure as filedunAnnual Report on Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Forward-looking Statements

In addition to historical information, this reponay contain statements relating to future eventisfature results. These statements are
“forward-looking” within the meaning of the Priva8ecurities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 and applile Canadian securities legislation
and involve known and unknown risks, uncertaintieijre expectations and other factors that mageaatual results, performance or
achievements of Cott Corporation to be materiaifiecent from any future results, performance dniaeements expressed or implied by s
forward-looking statements. Such statements in¢lodeare not limited to, statements that relatergjections of sales, earnings, earnings per
share, cash flows, capital expenditures or otmamitial items, discussions of estimated futuremegeenhancements and cost savings. These
statements also relate to our business strategys gad expectations concerning our market posifidore operations, margins, profitability,
liquidity and capital resources. Generally, wordstsas “anticipate,” “believe,” “continue,” “could;endeavor,” “estimate,” “expect,”

“intend,” “may,” “will,” “plan,” “predict,” “project,” “should” and similar terms and phrases are usddentify forward-looking statements in
this report and in the documents incorporated isréport by reference. These forward-looking stetets reflect current expectations
regarding future events and operating performandeaae made only as of the date of this report.

The forward-looking statements are not guarantéégture performance or events and, by their natare based on certain estimates
and assumptions regarding interest and foreignamngd rates, expected growth, results of operatimréormance, business prospects and
opportunities and effective income tax rates, whith subject to inherent risks and uncertaintiesteMal factors or assumptions that were
applied in drawing a conclusion or making an estins®t out in forward-looking statements may ineluslit are not limited to, assumptions
regarding management’s current plans and estimatesbility to remain a low cost supplier, andeetfve management of commodity costs.
Although we believe the assumptions underlyingeatfesward-looking statements are reasonable, atlyesie assumptions could prove to be
inaccurate and, as a result, the forwtaking statements based on those assumptions poaVe to be incorrect. Our operations involve s
and uncertainties, many of which are outside ofamntrol, and any one or any combination of théslesrand uncertainties could also affect
whether the forward-looking statements ultimatelyve to be correct. These risks and uncertaintielside, but are not limited to, those
described in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” in cddmnual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwer 31, 2011, and those described
from time to time in our future reports filed withe Securities and Exchange Commission and Canadmities regulatory authorities.

The following are some of the factors that coul@etfour financial performance, including but riatited to, sales, earnings and cash
flows, or could cause actual results to differ matly from estimates contained in or underlying fiorward-looking statements:
» our ability to compete successfully in the hightyrpetitive beverage catego

» changes in consumer tastes and preferences faingqsoducts and our ability to develop and timialynch new products that
appeal to such changing consumer tastes and preéss;

» loss of or a reduction in sales to any significzugtomer, particularly Walmai

« fluctuations in commodity prices and our abilitytass on increased costs to our customers, anchgaet of those increased
prices on our volume:!

» our ability to manage our operations successf

» currency fluctuations that adversely affect thehextge between the U.S. dollar and the British pateding, the Euro, the
Canadian dollar, the Mexican peso and other cuiesr

* our ability to maintain favorable arrangements exidtionships with our supplier

« our ability to realize the expected benefits of @ifstar Acquisition because of integration diffities and other challenge
» risks associated with the asset purchase agreentared into in connection with the Cliffstar Acsijtion;

» the substantial indebtedness we incurred and alittyab meet our obligations

e our ability to maintain compliance with the covetsaand conditions under our debt agreeme

» fluctuations in interest rate

» credit rating change:

» the impact of global financial events on our finahcesults;
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» our ability to fully realize the expected cost sms and/or operating efficiencies from our restitiog activities;

e any disruption to production at our beverage cotraées or other manufacturing facilitie

e our ability to protect our intellectual proper

« compliance with product health and safety stand:

 liability for injury or illness caused by the comsption of contaminated produc

» liability and damage to our reputation as a restlitigation or legal proceeding

» changes in the legal and regulatory environmenthith we operate

» the impact of proposed taxes on soda and otherysdgaks;

» enforcement of compliance with the Ontario Enviremtal Protection Act

e unseasonably cold or wet weather, which could redlemand for our beverag:

» the impact of national, regional and global eveimtsiuding those of a political, economic, businasd competitive natur

e our ability to recruit, retain, and integrate newrmagement and a new management struc

e our exposure to intangible asset ri

» our ability to renew our collective bargaining agreents on satisfactory tern

» disruptions in our information systen

» volatility of our stock price; o

» our ability to maintain compliance with the listingguirements of the New York Stock Exchar

We undertake no obligation to update any informmationtained in this report or to publicly reledse tesults of any revisions to

forward-looking statements to reflect events ocwinstances of which we may become aware of aftedalte of this report. Undue reliance

should not be placed on forward-looking statemeantd, all future written and oral forward-looking&ments attributable to us or persons
acting on our behalf are expressly qualified inrteatirety by the foregoing.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
We do not trade market risk sensitive instruments.

Currency Exchange Rate Risk

Our North America and U.K. reporting segments paseha portion of their inventory for our Canadiad &uropean operations,
respectively, through transactions denominatedsatited in U.S. dollars and Euros, respectivelyremcies different from the functional
currency of those operations. These inventory mseb are subject to exposure from movements iraegehrates. We use foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge operational exposuradtieg from changes in these foreign currency erge rates. The intent of the foreign
exchange contracts is to provide predictabilitpim overall cost structure. These foreign exchamgeracts, carried at fair value, have
maturities of less than one year. As of March 31,2 we had outstanding foreign exchange forwardraots with notional amounts of $15.2
million.

Debt Obligations and Interest Rates

We have exposure to interest rate risk from thetanting principal amounts of our short-term amdjiterm debt. Our long- term debt
is fixed and our short-term debt is variable. OBl Aacility is vulnerable to fluctuations in the 8. short-term base rate and the LIBOR rate.
At current debt levels as of March 31, 2012, a h@€is point increase in the current per annumestaate for our ABL facility (excluding tl
$11.1 million outstanding letters of credit) wouksbult in less than $0.1 million of additional irgst expense during the next year. This
change would not be material to our cash flowsusrresults of operations. The weighted-averageéstaate of our debt outstanding at
March 31, 2012 was 8.2%.
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Commodity Price Risk

We have no material changes to the disclosureismthtter made in our Annual Report on Form 10-Ktfie year ended December 31,
2011.

ltem 4. Controls and Procedures
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaess as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15¢hedSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). The Camijsananagement, under the supervision and witlp#rgcipation of the Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officearried out an evaluation of the effectivenesthefdesign and operation of the
Company'’s disclosure controls and procedures &eoémber 31, 2011. Based upon this evaluationCtmpany’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as @frith 31, 2012, the Company’s disclosure controtspancedures are functioning
effectively to ensure that information requiredbtdisclosed by the Company in reports filed omsitted under the Exchange Act is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported vithitime periods specified in SEC rules and forans, accumulated and communicated
to the Company’s management, including the Comma@¥ief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officto allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

In addition, our management carried out an evalnats required by Rule 13a-15(d) of the Exchangfe With the participation of our
Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial i0éfr, of changes in our internal control over fic@hreporting. Based on this evaluation,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan€Mficer concluded that there have been no chaimgesr internal control over financial
reporting during our most recent fiscal quartet treve materially affected, or are likely to maadlyi affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION
Item 1. Legal Proceedings
Reference is made to the legal proceedings desciibaur Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgahr ended December 31, 2011.

ltem 1A. Risk Factors

There has been no material change in our risk fasioce December 31, 2011. Please refer to ouu@lriReport on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 for a detaiésgription of our risk factors.

ltem 6. Exhibits

Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FormKl@ated February 28,
2007).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed

May 10, 2007)
10.1 Employment Offer Letter to Jay Wells dated January2012 (filed herewith’

10.2 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as ofl AP, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Cat&ages Inc., Cliffste
LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Borrowers,dtieer Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders gheseto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filedewith).

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (filed herewitt

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (filed herewitt

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fab2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (furnished herewil

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuao section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (furnished herewil

101 The following financial statements from Cott Corgibon’s Quarterly Report on Form IDfor the quarter ended March 31, 2(

filed on May 7, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtensilBaisiness Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidateteStants of Operations,
(i) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Compmtetncome, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheet9, Qunsolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated StatesradriEquity, (vi) Notes to the Consolidated Finah&tatements (furnished
herewith).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causisdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

COTT CORPORATION
(Registrant’

Date: May 7, 2012 /sl Jay Wells

Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officer
(On behalf of the Compan'

Date: May 7, 2012 /sl Gregory Leite

Gregory Leiter

Senior Vice President, Chief Accounting Officer akakistant
Secretary

(Principal Accounting Officer

Exhibit Index
Number Description
3.1 Articles of Amalgamation of Cott Corporation (inporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our FornKl@ated February 28,
2007).
3.2 Second Amended and Restated By-laws of Cott Cotiporéincorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to &orm 10-Q filed May
10, 2007).
10.1 Employment Offer Letter to Jay Wells dated Januaty2012 (filed herewith’
10.2 Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as aofl AP, 2012, by and among Cott Corporation, Cav&ages Inc., Cliffstar
LLC, and Cott Beverages Limited, as Borrowers,dtieer Loan Parties party thereto, the Lenders phéseto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agent (filedewith).
31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (filed herewitt
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (filed herewitt
321 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (furnished herewit
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2fad2he quarterly period
ended May 7, 2012 (furnished herewit
101 The following financial statements from Cott Corgidon’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the qemended March 31, 2012,

filed on May 7, 2012, formatted in XBRL (eXtensilBeisiness Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatetkeBtants of Operations,
(i) Condensed Consolidated Statements of Compsatetncome, (iii) Consolidated Balance Sheet9, @unsolidated
Statements of Cash Flows, (v) Consolidated StatesvarEquity, (vi) Notes to the Consolidated FinahStatements (furnished
herewith).
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Exhibit 10.1
January 14, 2012

Earl Jay Wells

1223 Sprucelea Drive
Oakville, Ontario L65-2E7
CANADA

Dear Jay:

| am very pleased to outline in this letter (th®ffer Letter ”) the terms and conditions on which we are offgryou the position of Chief
Financial Officer of COTT Corporation (theCompany”). This Offer Letter will not constitute an agreent until it has been fully executed
by both parties. Please note that this Offer Leattars not contemplate a contract or promise of epmpént for any specific term; where
lawfully permitted in any jurisdiction in which yquerform any employment responsibilities on beb&the Company, you will be an at will
employee at all times.

1. Position and Duties

1.1 Position. Subject to the terms and conditions hereof, youheilemployed by the Company as its Chief Finar@iéiter, effective
as of March 20, 2012, or an earlier date mutualyeptable to both parties (th&mployment Date”).

1.2 Responsibilities

(a) As the Company’s Chief Financial Officer, yoill weport to the Chief Executive Officer and hasgch duties and
responsibilities as may be assigned to you frone tiontime by the Chief Executive Officer.

(b) You agree to devote all of your business time attention to the business and affairs of the g and to discharging the
responsibilities assigned to you. This shall necprde you from (i) serving on the boards of divesof a reasonable number of charitable
organizations, (ii) engaging in charitable actastand community affairs, and (iii) managing yoerspnal affairs, so long as these activities
do not interfere with the performance of your deised responsibilities as the Company’s Chief RrarOfficer.

1.3 No Employment Restriction. You hereby represent and covenant that your empayioy the Company does not violate any
agreement or covenant to which you are subjecyavtich you are bound and that there is no sucheagent or covenant that could restrict
or impair your ability to perform your duties oisdharge your responsibilities to the Comp:




2. Remuneration.

2.1 Base Salary Your annual base salary will initially be at theeraf US $350,000 per year £hnual Base Salary”), paid on a semi-
monthly basis, pro-rated for any partial periodsdshon the actual number of days in the applicadtd. Your performance will be
evaluated at least annually, and any increaseettetrel of your Annual Base Salary will be deteredras part of the regular annual review
process. You will receive an annual car allowamcihé amount of US $13,500 annually and a cell ptadlowance in the amount of US
$2,025 annually.

2.2 Bonus. You will be eligible to participate in the Compasydnnual bonus plan and may earn a bonus basedhgpachievement of
specified performance goals. The amount of yowetialbonus is 75% of your Annual Base Salary. Theubgear is the Comparg/fiscal yea
and any payments made to you for bonus year 20l ®evpro-rated based on your Employment Date aB@6aday year. Currently the
maximum potential payout permitted under the bagsas is two (2) times the applicable target borarsathievement of performance goals
significantly in excess of the target goals, aaldi&hed by the Human Resources and Compensationm@itee of the Company’s Board of
Directors. Please note that the bonus plan isedytitiscretionary and the Company reserves inbsolute discretion the right to terminate or
amend it or any other bonus plan that may be éstedual.

2.3 Onetime LTI Grant . You will be entitled to receive a one-time longneincentive (“LTI”) award equivalent to US $437,500 wl
the 2012 annual awards are made to other senicutixes of the Company. The LTI award, including ttesting terms, will be governed by
the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan and your award agesg. Your LTI award will be split as follows: 25Restricted Share Units with time-
based vesting; 37.5% Stock Options; and 37.5% kRexirShare Units with performance-based vesting.

2.4 Signing BonusesSubject to Section 4 below, you will be awarded sigming bonuses in the amounts and on the dates! Ibelow:
Employment Date — US $60,000
On the first-year anniversary of the EmploymentedDatUS $65,000

3. Benefits.

3.1 Benefit Program. Effective as of the Employment Date, you will begidle to participate in the Company’s benefit pamgs
generally available to other senior executivehef@€ompany. Our benefit programs include healdatdiity and life insurance benefits.
Employee contributions are required for our bergfiigram. You will also be eligible to be reimbuts® the company will pay directly for
the costs of an annual medical examination in aouarinnot to exceed US $1,500 per year.

3.2 401(k) Plan. In addition, on the first day of the first fiscalayter following your completion of six (6) montbEemployment, you
will be eligible to participate in the Company’s}4R) Savings and Retirement Plan.

3.3 Vacation. You will be entitled to four (4) weeks vacation matendar year. You are encouraged to take vacatithe calendar ye
it is earned. All earne



vacation must be taken by March 31st of the yel&fing the year in which it is earned; otherwisenay be forfeited. If you should leave
Company, the value of any unearned vacation talkgrob will be considered a debt to the Company.vatiation periods require the apprc
of the Chief Executive Officer.

3.4 Reimbursement You will be reimbursed for expenses reasonablyrmclin connection with the performance of youriekin
accordance with the Company’s policies as estadgdigitom time to time.

3.5 No Other Benefits You will not be entitled to any benefit or perqtesother than as specifically set out in this Offetter or
separately agreed to in writing by the Company.

3.6 Relocation.You will be provided with a relocation allowancewgs to US $250,000, which must be used for costsried during
your relocation from Canada to the Tampa, FL aPagments will be made against US $250,000 at e teceipts are presented to
Company for reimbursement. As a condition of camithemployment with the Company, you will be expddb complete your relocation to
Tampa, FL within the six-month period following tBenployment Date. You and the Company will useagrable best efforts to minimize
any tax impact to you resulting from the paymemtseambursements by the Company to you for reloced¢ixpenses.

4. Repayment.In view of the amounts being provided you in acemck with Section 2.4 and Section 3.6, you wiltdxguired to repay the
Company based on the following schedule, if youtamminated for Cause (as defined in Exliti &) or voluntarily resign your position, as
follows:

Relocation Allowance- Full repayment if such termination or resignatbmeurs prior to the one-year anniversary of the
Employment Date; for a termination or resignatiotiofwing 12 months and up to 36 months from theiamsary of the
Employment Date, the repayment amount will be reduan a pro-rata basis for each full month workedhfthe Employment
Date;

Signing Bonuses Full repayment of the US $60,000 signing bonwidh termination or resignation occurs prior @ one year
anniversary of the Employment Date; for a termorair resignation following 12 months and up ton@dnths from the
anniversary of the Employment Date, the repaymerduat will be reduced on a pro-rata basis for datttmonth worked from
the Employment Date. Full repayment of the US $88 §igning bonus if such termination or resignatienurs prior to the
second-year anniversary of the Employment Datea fiermination or resignation following 24 montimslaip to 36 months from
the anniversary of the Employment Date, the repayramount will be reduced on a pro-rata basis &heull month worked
from 12 months following the Employment Date tor8énths following the Employment Date.

Repayment of any amounts due pursuant this sedtstrall be made to the company the"90 day afteddbe of resignation or
termination.



5. Preemployment Processing Prior to employment the Company requires successiulpletion of its pre-employment processing. This
includes a background investigation of your quedifions and references. To comply with the ImmigraReform and Control Act of 1986,
the Company must verify your identity and authdi@ato work in the United States. The back oféinelosed INS Form I-9 contains a list of
documents that provide such verification. Pleaggghwith you on your first day either one origirtilcument from List Aor one original
document from List Band one original document from List.@f you have any difficulty producing the requirddcuments, please call the
Human Resources department of the Company immédiatpon acceptance of this offer, you acknowledgd agree that Company has the
right to disclose confidential information regamgliyou, this Offer Letter or your employment to dahiyd party or publicly as determined by
the Company to be required by law.

6. Termination; Payments and Entitlements Upon a Tienination .

6.1 Termination . The Company may terminate your employment: (alJfause (as defined in Exhibit A), (b) upon your Disty (as
defined in Exhibit A), or (c) for any reason or m@ason, in all cases, upon reasonable notice toYmur employment with the Company will
terminate upon your death.

6.2 Involuntary Termination . Subject to Sections 6.3, 10.9, and 12.11, if ywuployment is terminated (i) by the Company without
Cause other than by reason of your Disability Bbf you for Good Reason (either (i) or (ii), ainoluntary Termination "), you will be
entitled to the following payments and entitlements

(a) Cash Severance Paymelviou will receive a cash payment in an amount etfuaine months of your then Annual Base Salary
(the “Severance Amount’) . The Severance Amount will be paid in a lumpnsiless all applicable withholding taxes, withiirtyr (30) days
after the Involuntary Termination, except in theeaf an Involuntary Termination that is part @fraup termination program, in which case
the payment shall be made within sixty (60) dayse $everance Amount will not be considered as casgi®n for purposes of determining
benefits under any other qualified or non-qualifigains of the Company. For greater certainty, nefance Amount is intended to be in lieu
of any benefits continuation or payment in respédbss of such benefits and you specifically aghes the Severance Amount represents a
greater right or benefit than that required untelBmployment Standards Ac000(Ontario) or pursuant to such other employmentfabo
standard applicable to your employment with the @any. To the extent that any benefits are requisestatute to be continued following
termination of your employment, then the Comparsgke obligation will be to do so for such minimunration as may be required by the
Employment Standards Act, 2C(Ontario), or by such employment/labor standardsslation as is applicable to your employment wfité
Company.

(b) Accrued Salary and Vacatioryou will be paid all salary and accrued vacatiay earned through the date of your termina
less all applicable withholding taxes, on the fregjular pay date following the date of your teration.

(c) No Other PaymentsUpon payment of the amounts to be paid pursua8ettions 6.2(a) and 6.2(b), the Company shak hav
no further liability hereunde




6.3 Release RequiredExcept as may be required by the minimum provisiegsiired under thEmployment Standards Ac2000
(Ontario) or pursuant to such other employmentflatandard applicable to your employment with tleenpany, you will not be entitled to
receive the payment set forth in Section 6.2(a) drapplicable, Section 9, unless you executéeadt seven days before the date payment is
due to be made, and do not revoke, a release fiotimeof Exhibit B in favor of the Company and reld parties relating to all claims or
liabilities of any kind relating to your employmenith the Company and the Involuntary Terminatidésach employment.

7. Other Termination . If your employment is terminated by (a) your resition, (b) your death, or (c) by the Company fous§aor as a
result of your Disability, then you shall not betited to receive any severance or other paymemititjements or benefits other than Annual
Base Salary earned through the date of terminatiohreimbursement for expenses through the da&rrafnation and, in either case, not yet
paid. For greater certainty, with respect to a teation by reason of death or by reason of a Diggbinothing in this Offer Letter shall
derogate from any rights and/or entitlements tloat jay be entitled to receive under any other gguaitnpensation or benefit plan of the
Company applicable to you.

8. Resignation. If you are a director of the Company or a directoan officer of a company affiliated or relatedtie Company at the time
your termination, you will be deemed to have res@jall such positions, and you agree that uponitaton you will execute such tenders
resignation as may be requested by the Companyiderece such resignations.

9. Rights under Equity Plans. The provisions of this Offer Letter are subjecttte terms of the Company’s equity plans in effeatftime
to time. Any equity awards granted to you underageity plans shall be forfeited or not, vest ot, @md, in the case of stock options and
stock appreciation rights, become exercisable grasoprovided by and subject to the terms of iieable equity plan.

10. Restrictive Covenants

10.1 Confidentiality .

(@) You acknowledge that in the course of carrgoy performing and fulfilling your obligations the Company hereunder, you
will have access to and will be entrusted with infation that would reasonably be considered confidkto the Company or its Affiliates,
the disclosure of which to competitors of the Comypar its Affiliates or to the general public, wilke highly detrimental to the best interests
of the Company or its Affiliates. Such informatimeludes, without limitation, trade secrets, knoawsh marketing plans and techniques, cost
figures, client lists, software, and informatiohateng to employees, suppliers, customers and persocontractual relationship with the
Company. Except as may be required in the coursarofing out your duties hereunder, you covenadtagree that you will not disclose,
the duration of your employment or at any time ¢adter, any such information to any person, othanto the directors, officers, employees
or agents of the Company that have a need to kootvisiformation, nor shall you use or exploit, dife or indirectly, such information for
any purpose other than for the purposes of the @asnmor will you disclose or use for any purpas@er than for those of the Company or
its Affiliates, any other information which you magquire during your employment with respect tolibsiness and affairs of the Compan
its Affiliates. Notwithstanding all of the foregainyou shall be entitled to disclose such inforomaif required pursuant to a subpoena or ¢
issued by a court, arbitrator or governmental bagdygncy or official, provided that you shall fitgtve:

(i) notified the Company



(i) consulted with the Company on whether therariobligation or defense to providing some ooathe requested
information;

(iii) if the disclosure is required or deemed adbig, cooperate with the Company in an attempbtaio an order or other
assurance that such information will be accordedidential treatment.

(b) Notwithstanding the foregoing, you may disclaggermation relating to your own compensation &eefits to your spouse,
attorneys, financial advisors and taxing authaitRlease note that pursuant to rules promulgatedebU.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act o#tlifZffect on the date hereof, the amount and corapts of your compensation are
required to be publicly disclosed on an annualsasi

10.2 Inventions. You acknowledge and agree that all right, title aridrest in and to any information, trade secratdsances,
discoveries, improvements, research materials atabdses made or conceived by you prior to or dy@ur employment relating to the
business or affairs of the Company, shall belongp¢oCompany. In connection with the foregoing, gguee to execute any assignments
and/or acknowledgements as may be requested Ihieé Executive Officer from time to time.

10.3 Corporate Opportunities. Any business opportunities related to the businésise Company which become known to you during
your employment with the Company must be fully tised and made available to the Company by youyandgree not to take or atten
to take any action if the result would be to divfestm the Company any opportunity which is withine tscope of its business.

10.4 NornCompetition and Non-Solicitation .

(&) You will not at any time, without the prior Wwen consent of the Company, during your employmetit the Company and for
a period after the termination of your employméuatt tis equal to the number of months used in thmutzdion of the Severance Payment
under Section 6,2(a) (regardless of the reasosuch termination or whether the Severance Paymanade), either individually or in
partnership, jointly or in conjunction with any pen or persons, firm, association, syndicate, aatmmn or company, whether as agent,
shareholder, employee, consultant, or in any mawhetsoever, directly or indirectly:

(i) anywhere in the Territory, engage in, carryasrotherwise have any interest in, advise, lendeydn, guarantee the
debts or obligations of, permit your name to beduiseconnection with any business which is compwetito the Business or which provides
the same or substantially similar services as th&rigss;

(i) for the purpose, or with the effect, of comipgtwith any business of the Company, solicit, rifeee with, accept any
business from or render any services to anyoneisvaalient or a prospective client of the Compangny Affiliate at the time you ceased to
be employed by the Company or who was a clienihdutie 12 months immediately preceding such t



(iii) solicit or offer employment to any person elmyed or engaged by the Company or any Affiliatéhattime you ceased
to be employed by the Company or who was an empldyeing the 12-month period immediately precedinch time.

(b) Nothing in this Offer Letter shall prohibit ogstrict you from holding or becoming beneficialiyerested in up to one
(1%) percent of any class of securities in any camyprovided that such class of securities aredisin a recognized stock exchange in
Canada or the United States or on the NASDAQ.

(c) If you are at any time in violation of any pision of this Section 10.4, then each time limgatset forth in this Section 10.4
shall be extended for a period of time equal toptkod of time during which such violation or \atibns occur. If the Company seeks
injunctive relief from any such violation, then tbevenants set forth shall be extended for a peridiine equal to the pendency of the
proceeding in which relief is sought, including a&fipeals there from.

10.5 Insider and Other Policies You will comply with all applicable securities lavasd the Company’s Insider Trading Policy and
Insider Reporting Procedures in respect of anyrééesiof the Company that you may acquire, and wducomply with all other of the
Company’s policies that may be applicable to yamfitime to time.

10.6 NonDisparagement. You will not disparage the Company or any of itiliates, directors, officers, employees or other
representatives in any manner and will in all respavoid any negative criticism of the Company.

10.7 Injunctive Relief.

(a) You acknowledge and agree that in the eveatlwBach of the covenants, provisions and restnistin this Section 10, the
Company’s remedy in the form of monetary damagdisbeiinadequate and that the Company shall bejsahdreby, authorized and entitled,
in addition to all other rights and remedies avdédzo it, to apply for and obtain from a courtogimpetent jurisdiction interim and permanent
injunctive relief and an accounting of all profé#sd benefits arising out of such breach.

(b) The parties acknowledge that the restrictionthis Section 10 are reasonable in all of theuoirstances and you acknowledge
that the operation of restrictions contained is tBéction 10 may seriously constrain your freedmiseek other remunerative employment. If
any of the restrictions are determined to be uneefible as going beyond what is reasonable inithensstances for the protection of the
interests of the Company but would be valid, foareple, if the scope of their time periods or gepgiaareas were limited, the parties
consent to the court making such modifications ag bre required and such restrictions shall appti sich modifications as may be
necessary to make them valid and effective.

10.8_Survival of Restrictions. Each and every provision of this Section 10 shalise the termination of this Offer Letter or your
employment (regardless of the reason for such teztioin).




10.9 Forfeiture . Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 6.2 olldwing any Involuntary Termination it shall betdemined that the
you have breached (either before or after suchitetion) any of the agreements in this Sectionti®,Company shall have no obligation
liability or otherwise to make any further paymender Section 6.2 from and after the date of suehdh, except for payments, if any, that
cannot legally be forfeited.

11. Code Section 409A

11.1 In General. This Section 11 shall apply to you if you are sabje Section 409A of the United States Internatdéteie Code of
1986 (the “Code”), but only with respect to any pent due hereunder that is subject to Section 4§f3Ae Code.

11.2 Release Any requirement that you execute and not revol&ease to receive a payment hereunder shall appliypayment
described in Section 11.1 only if the Company piesithe release to you on or before the date af lpeoluntary Termination.

11.3 Payment Following Involuntary Termination. Notwithstanding any other provision herein to tbhatcary, any payment descrik
in Section 11.1 that is due to be paid within destgeriod following your Involuntary Terminatiohall be paid:

(a) If, at the time of your Involuntary Terminatioyou are a “specified employee” as defined in i8act09A of the Code, such
payment shall be made as of the later of (i) tite dayment is due hereunder, or (ii) the earlighefdate which is six months after your
“separation from service” (as defined under SectiofA of the Code), or the date of your death; or

(b) In any other case, on the later of (i) last dathe stated period, or if such stated periatbismore than 90 days, at any time
during such stated period as determined by the @agnwithout any input from you, or (ii) the dateyafur “separation from service” (as
defined under Section 409A of the Code).

11.4 Reimbursements The following shall apply to any reimbursement tissa payment described in Section 11.1: (a) watipect to
any such reimbursement under Section 12.8, reiremeat shall not be made unless the expense ig@ttduring the period beginning on
your effective hire date and ending on the sixthiersary of your death; (b) the amount of expemrsigible for reimbursement during yo
taxable year shall not affect the expenses elidgdleeimbursement in any other year; and (c) timing of all such reimbursements shall be
provided herein, but not later than the last dayafr taxable year following the taxable year ineththe expense was incurred.

11.5 Offset. If you are subject to Section 409A of the Codwg;, affset under Section 12.11 shall apply to a payhdescribed in
Section 11.1 only if the debt or obligation wasurred in the ordinary course of your employmentwite Company, the entire amount of the
set-off in any taxable year of the Company doesroted $5,000, and the sétis made at the same time and in the same anasutite dek
or obligation otherwise would have been due ankkctdd from you



11.6 Interpretation . This Offer Letter shall be interpreted and camestrso as to avoid the additional tax under Seet@gA(a)(1)(B) o
the Code to the maximum extent practicable.

12. General Provisions

12.1 Entire Agreement. This Offer Letter, together with the plans and duoents referred to herein, constitutes and exprdhseshole
agreement of the parties hereto with referenceyoofthe matters or things herein provided foherein before discussed or mentioned with
reference to your employment. All promises, repnést@on, collateral agreements and undertakingexrptessly incorporated in this Offer
Letter are hereby superseded by this Offer Letter.

12.2 Amendment. This Offer Letter may be amended or modified onhabwriting signed by both of the parties hereto.

12.3 Assignment This Offer Letter may be assigned by the Compargnipsuccessor to its business or operations. Nolts
hereunder may not be transferred by you exceptitbpmby the laws of descent and distribution anatept insofar as applicable law may
otherwise require. Any purported assignment inatioh of the preceding sentence shall be void.

12.4 Governing Law. This Offer Letter shall be governed by and constimeaccordance with the laws of the Province ofaio and
the federal laws of Canada applicable therein,authieference to principles of conflict of laws.dBaf the parties hereby irrevocably attorns
to the jurisdiction of the courts of the ProvindeOmtario with respect to any matters arising dugaur employment.

12.5 Severability. The invalidity of any one or more of the words, sdes, sentences, clauses or sections containeid iDffer Letter
shall not affect the enforceability of the remagiportions of the Offer Letter or any part theresdf,of which are inserted conditionally on
their being valid in law, and, in the event thay ane or more of the words, phrases, sentencassadaor sections contained in the Offer
Letter shall be declared invalid, the Offer Lethall be construed as if such invalid word or woplsase or phrases, sentence or sentences,
clause or clauses, or section or sections hade®t mserted.

12.6 Section Headings and GendefThe section headings contained herein are foreeéer purposes only and shall not affect in any
way the meaning or interpretation of this agreemathfpronouns and any variations thereof shaltbemed to refer to the masculine,
feminine or neuter, as the identity of the persoparsons may require.

12.7 No Term of Employment Nothing herein obligates the Company to continuentgploy you. Where lawfully permitted in any
jurisdiction in which you perform employment respirilities on behalf of the Company, your employmsmall be at will

12.8 Indemnification . The Company will indemnify and hold you harmles$ii® maximum extent permitted by applicable lawirsia
judgments, fines, amounts paid in settlement aadamable expenses, including reasonable attc fees, in connection with the defense of,
or as a result of any action or proceeding (oramyeal from any action



proceeding) in which you are made or are threatémbée made a party by reason of the fact thatayewr were an officer of the Company or
any Affiliate. In addition, the Company agrees that shall be covered and insured up to the maxidmmits provided by any insurance
which the Company maintains to indemnify its diogstand officers (as well as any insurance thagiintains to indemnify the Company for
any obligations which it incurs as a result ofutglertaking to indemnify its officers and direclors

12.9 Survivorship. Upon the termination your employment, the respeatights and obligations of the parties shall st;nsuch
termination to the extent necessary to carry oeifritended preservation of such rights and obbgati

12.10 Taxes All payments under this Offer Letter shall be saebje withholding of such amounts, if any, relatiogax or other payroll
deductions as the Company may reasonably detemmihahould withhold pursuant to any applicable dawegulation.

12.11 SetOff . Except as limited by Section 11.5, the Company s&yoff any amount or obligation which may be owlirygyou to the
Company against any amount or obligation owinghgy@ompany to you.

12.12 Records All books, records, and accounts relating in anynes to the Company or to any suppliers, custoneersljents of the
Company, whether prepared by you or otherwise cgrmito your possession, shall be the exclusive gntgmf the Company and
immediately returned to the Company upon termimatibemployment or upon request at any time.

12.13 Counterparts. This Offer Letter may be executed in counterpadsh of which shall be deemed to be an originabbutf which
together shall constitute one and the same instiime

12.14 Consultation with Counsel You acknowledge that you have conferred with youn @ounsel with respect to this Offer Letter,
and that you understand the restrictions and liroita that it imposes upon your conduct.

Jay, please indicate your acceptance of this bffeeturning one signed original of this Offer lestt

Yours truly,

Pz

Jerry Fowden, CEO Cott Corporati

| accept this offer of employment and agree to dwenid by the terms and conditions listed herein.

/sl Jay Wells January 15, 2012
Earl Jay Wells Date




Exhibit A
Definitions

“ Affiliate " shall mean, with respect to any person or erftigrein the ‘first party "), any other person or entity that directs or redtly
controls, or is controlled by, or is under commontcol with, such first party. The term “controls ased herein (including the terms
“controlled by” and “under common control with”) @res the possession, directly or indirectly, of gbever to: (i) vote 50% or more of the
outstanding voting securities of such person aityerdr (ii) otherwise direct or significantly infence the management or policies of such
person or entity by contract or otherwise.

“ Business’ shall mean the business of manufacturing, selindistributing carbonated soft drinks, juicestevand other non-alcoholic
beverages to the extent such other non-alcoholierbges contribute, or are contemplated or prajeiteontribute, materially to the profits
of the Company at the time of termination of yoompdoyment.

“ Cause” shall mean your:

(a) willful failure to properly carry out your det and responsibilities or to adhere to the pdiofehe Company after written
notice by the Company of the failure to do so, amch failure remaining uncorrected following an ogpnity for you to correct the failure
within ten (10) days of the receipt of such notice;

(b) theft, fraud, dishonesty or misappropriationth® gross negligence or willful misconduct, inknob the property, business or
affairs of the Company, or in the carrying out ofiy duties, including, without limitation, any bodeof the representations, warranties and
covenants contained herein;

(c) conviction of or plea of guilty to a criminalfence that involves fraud, dishonesty, theft aience;

(d) breach of a fiduciary duty owed to the Company;

(e) refusal to follow the lawful written reasonahled good faith direction of the Board; or

(f) failure to relocate to the greater metropolifeampa, Florida area within six months of the Ergpient Date.

“ Disability ” shall mean any incapacity or inability by youclinding any physical or mental incapacity, disedbeess or affliction, which
has prevented or which will likely prevent you frggarforming the essential duties of your positiondix (6) consecutive months or for any
cumulative period of 125 business days (whethe&biconsecutive) in any two (2) year period.

“ Good Reasor shall mean any of the following:
(a) a material diminution in your title or assignméo you of materially inconsistent duties;

A-1



(b) a reduction in your then-current Annual Bask&eor target bonus opportunity as a percentagenoiual Base Salary, unless
such reduction is made applicable to all seniocetiees;

(c) relocation of your principal place of employméma location that is more than 50 miles awaynfrour principal place of
employment on the Employment Date, unless sucltaétm is effected at your request and with youyrapal;

(d) a material breach by the Company of any proussiof this Offer Letter, or any employment agreente which you and the
Company are parties, after written notice by yothefbreach and such failure remaining uncorreict#olving an opportunity for the
Company to correct such failure within ten (10) slaf the receipt of such notice; or

(e) the failure of the Company to obtain the assiongn writing of its obligation to perform thisft@r Letter by any successor to
all or substantially all of the business or asséthie Company within fifteen (15) days after a ger consolidation, sale or similar
transaction.

“ Territory " shall mean the countries in which the Company iesdubsidiaries conduct the Business or in wkiighCompany plans to
conduct the Business within the following 12 months
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Exhibit B
Form of Release

RELEASE AGREEMENT

In consideration of the mutual promises, paymentsteenefits provided for in the Offer Letter betw&@OTT Corporation (the “
Corporation ") and Earl Jay Wells (the Employee”) dated January 12, 2012, the Corporation andethployee agree to the terms of this
Release Agreement. Capitalized terms used andefioied in this Release Agreement shall have theninga assigned thereto in the Offer

Letter.

1.

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that thmo@ion is under no obligation to offer the Enygle the payments and
benefits set forth in Section 6.2 of the Offer ketlinless the Employee consents to the terms ®Rbiease Agreement. The
Employee further acknowledges that he/she is und@bligation to consent to the terms of this Redegreement and that the
Employee has entered into this agreement freelywahahtarily.

In consideration of the payment and benefitéa#h in the Offer Letter and the Corporation’sease set forth in paragraph 5, the
Employee voluntarily, knowingly and willingly relsas and forever discharges the Corporation amffitates, together with its
and their respective officers, directors, partngihsreholders, employees and agents, and eacharfdttheir predecessors,
successors and assigns (collectivelReleasees), from any and all charges, complaints, claint®npises, agreements,
controversies, causes of action and demands ofi@ioye whatsoever that the Employee or his/herudges; administrators,
successors or assigns ever had, now have or hereaft, shall or may have against the Releaser=alspn of any matter, cause
thing whatsoever arising prior to the time of signof this Release Agreement by the Employee. &lease being provided by t
Employee in this Release Agreement includes, babidimited to, any rights or claims relating inyaway to the Employee’s
employment relationship with the Corporation or @syAffiliates, or the termination thereof, or werdany statute, including, but
not limited to theEmployment Standards Act, 200beHuman Rights CodgetheWorkplace Safety and Insurance et
employment provisions, theccupational Health & Safety ActhePay Equity Act theLabor Relations ActTitle VII of the Civil
Rights Act of 196, theAge Discrimination in Employment Acas amended by ti@lder Workers’ Benefit Protection Acthe
Family and Medical Leave A, and theAmericans With Disabilities A¢tor pursuant to any other applicable law or legish
governing or related to his/her employment or othregagement with the Corporation. The Employeevesra of his rights under
the Human Rights Codend represents, warrants, and hereby confirmshthit not asserting such rights, alleging thatsargh
rights have been breached, or advancing a humhbts rigaim or complaint. In no event shall this Rske apply to the Employee’s
right, if any, to indemnification, under the Empésys employment agreement or otherwise, that éffect on the date of this
Release and, if applicable, to the Corporationigyaktion to maintain in force reasonable directod afficer insurance in respect
of such indemnification obligation

The Employee acknowledges and agrees that heltsitienot, directly or indirectly, seek or furthes entitled to any personal
recovery in any lawsuit or other claim against@wrporation or any other Releasee based on any axising out of the matters
released in paragraph



Dated:

Nothing herein shall be deemed to release: (i)airtfie Employe’s continuing rights under the Offer Letter; o)) @iny of the
vested benefits that the Employee has accrued foritve date this Release Agreement is executedebiEmployee under the
employee benefit plans and arrangements of thedZatipn or any of its Affiliates; or (iii) any clais that may arise after the date
this Release Agreement is execul

In consideration of the Employee’s release @¢hfin paragraph 2, the Corporation knowingly arnkingly releases and forever
discharges the Employee from any and all chargesptaints, claims, promises, agreements, contr@srsauses of action and
demands of any nature whatsoever that the Corporattw has or hereafter can, shall or may havenaghim/her by reason of
any matter, cause or thing whatsoever arising poithe time of signing of this Release Agreemegnthie Corporation, provided,
however, that nothing herein is intended to relégssny claim the Corporation may have againstEheployee for any illegal
conduct or arising out of any illegal conduct, @)y recovery of incentive compensation paid toEh®ployee pursuant to the
Dodd-Frank Wall Street and Consumer Protection thet,Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, rules, regulatamms listing standards
promulgated thereunder, or Company policies implging the same as may be in effect from time teet

The Employee acknowledges that he has carafeslg and fully understands all of the provisiond afiects of the Offer Letter
and this Release Agreement. The Employee also adkdges that the Corporation, by this paragraphdbedsewhere, has advis
him/her to consult with an attorney of his/her deoprior to signing this Release Agreement. The leyge represents that, to the
extent he/she desires, he/she has had the oppgrtoimeview this Release Agreement with an attgrofehis/her choice

The Employee acknowledges that he/she has Bfsrrdthe opportunity to consider the terms of tRelease Agreement for a
period of at least forty-five (45) days, althougkidhe may sign it sooner should he/she desireEfffdoyee further shall have
seven (7) additional days from the date of sigrtiig Release Agreement to revoke his/her consemtdby notifying, in writing,
the General Counsel of the Corporation. This Rel@ageement will not become effective until sevayslafter the date on which
the Employee has signed it without revocat

Earl Jay Wells (Employet
B-2



B-2

COTT CORPORATION

Per

Name:
Title:

Per

Name:
Title:



Exhibit 10.2
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO CREDIT AGREEMENT, dated a$April 19, 2012 (this “* Amendmeri}, by and among Cott
Corporation Corporation Cott, a corporation orgadiander the laws of Canada, Cott Beverages Irig@gaxgia corporation, Cliffstar LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company, and Cott Bevgea Limited, a company organized under the lavsngfland and Wales, as Borrowers,
the other Loan Parties party hereto, the Lendety pareto, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Adtnative Agent. Each capitalized term
used herein and not defined herein shall have #emning ascribed thereto in the Credit Agreemeretrred to below.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the Borrowers, the other Loan Parties | #rders, the Administrative Agent, JPMorgan CHaaek, N.A., London
Branch, as UK Security Trustee, JPMorgan Chase Bk, as Administrative Collateral Agent, Gendedéctric Capital Corporation, as
Co-Collateral Agent, and the other parties paréreto, are parties to that certain Credit Agreerdated as of August 17, 2010 (as amended,
restated, supplemented or otherwise modified friome to time prior to the date hereof, the * Cradlireement); and

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that the Athtnative Agent and the Lenders agree to amertdingsrovisions of the Crec
Agreement on the terms and subject to the conditexpressly set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premisdéd@th above, and other good and valuable conatier, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, thisministrative Agent and the Lenders party heretovéliing to agree to amend certain
provisions of the Credit Agreement on the terms suiglect to the conditions expressly set forth imere

1. Amendments to Credit Agreemeriffective as of the Amendment No. 1 Effective ®gs defined below), the Borrowers, the other
Loan Parties, the Lenders, and the Administratige®t each agree that the Credit Agreement shahbdehereby is amended as follows:

(a) Clause (c) of the definition of “ Eligible Acants” is hereby amended by inserting the phrase “@elg in the case of
Accounts owing by Lidl UK Gmbh, 77 days)” immedigtafter the phrase “with respect to which the sithed due date is more than 60
days”.

(b) The definition of “ Swap Agreemehts hereby amended by inserting the phragethé purchase of any commaodity (includi
without limitation, resin) used or consumed in tiidinary course of the Compasybusiness, in each case by any Loan Party fronLenger
or any Affiliate of a Lender, (A) in the case of&e or any of its Affiliates, without any furthestian on the part of any Person and (B) in the
case of any other Lender or any of its Affiliateppn delivery to the Administrative Agent of a metisigned by the applicable Lender or its
Affiliate and the Borrower Representative desigmathe obligations under such agreement as Se€lvkglations entitled to the benefits of
the Collateral Documents and (ii)” immediately aftee phrase “means any agreement with respect to”.

(c) Section 6.09(a)(iv) of the Credit Agreementiégseby amended by replacing the reference to “50000 contained therein with
a reference to “50,000,000".

2. Conditions to Effectivenesshis Amendment shall become effective as of itst dlate (the “ Amendment No. 1 Effective D&t®n
which each of the following conditions precedentéhbeen satisfiec




(a) The Administrative Agent shall have receivedrterparts of this Amendment executed by each Barpeach other Loan Party,
Administrative Agent and the Required Lenders.

(b) To the extent not previously delivered, the Awistrative Agent shall have received a copy ofrigsolutions of each Loan Party
authorizing this Amendment.

(c) The representations and warranties set fordaoh of the Loan Documents and in Section 3 hesfeaif be true and correct in all
material respects on and as of the Amendment Niffettive Date, except for any representation andranty made as of an earlier date,
which representation and warranty shall remain &émne correct in all material respects as of sucleealate.

(d) At the time of and immediately after givingedt to this Amendment, no Default shall have ocaiand be continuing.
(e) At the time of and immediately after givingesdf to this Amendment, Aggregate Availability i¢ fess than zero.
(f) The amendments contemplated by this Amendmenpearmitted pursuant to each of the 2009 Inderandethe 2010 Indenture.

(g) The Administrative Agent shall have receiveckdificate, dated the Amendment No. 1 Effectiveéeland signed by a duly
authorized officer of each Borrower, certifyingtaghe items in clauses (c) through (f) above, Wiuertificate shall be in form and substance
reasonably satisfactory to the Administrative Agent

(h) The payment by Borrowers of all expenses reqlio be paid or reimbursed by the Borrowers puntsicathe Credit Agreement or
Section Shereof in connection with this Amendment.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Loand2arfio induce the other parties hereto to entertimoAmendment, each Loan Party
represents and warrants to each Lender and eaaft Ag®f the date hereof as follows:

(a) Each Loan Party has the legal power and auyhtoriexecute and deliver this Amendment and tffieest of each Loan Party
executing this Amendment have been duly authoriaezkecute and deliver the same and bind such Paaty with respect to the provisions
hereof.

(b) This Amendment has been duly executed andeteli/by each Loan Party that is a party hereto.

(c) This Amendment and the Credit Agreement as fimahereby (the “ Amended Agreeméheach constitutes the legal, valid and
binding obligations of each Loan Party, enforceagainst such Loan Party in accordance with itesesubject to applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium or otherdaffecting creditors’ rights generally and subjecgeneral principles of equity, regardless
of whether considered in a proceeding in equitgtdaw.

(d) The execution and delivery by each Loan Pafrthis Amendment, the performance by each LoanyRdrits obligations under the
Amended Agreement and under the other Loan Docusrienwhich it is a party and the consummation efttansactions contemplated by
Amended Agreement and the other Loan Documentdo(i)ot require any consent or approval of, regiigin or filing with, or any other
action by, any Governmental Authority, except sasthave been obtained or made and are in full fondeeffect and except for filings
necessary to perfect Liens created pursuant tbahe Documents, (ii) will not violate any Requiremef Law applicable to any Loan
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Party or any of its Subsidiaries, (iii) will notolate or result in a default under any indenturetber agreement governing Indebtedness o
other material agreement or other instrument bopdipon any Loan Party or any of its Restricted &lidses, or give rise to a right
thereunder to require any payment to be made by aag Party or any of its Restricted Subsidiaried @v) will not result in the creation or
imposition of any Lien on any asset of any LoantyPar any of its Restricted Subsidiaries, excepnisi created pursuant to the Loan
Documents.

(e) Each Borrower and each other Loan Party here#ffirms all covenants, representations and wéaesmade by it in the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents and agreesamfirms that all such representations and wéga are true and correct in all
material respects on and as of the date of thistdiment as though made on and as of such date,tdrcemy representation and warranty
made as of an earlier date, which representatidmamranty remains true and correct in all mategapects as of such earlier date.

(f) Each Borrower has caused to be conducted adgbrreview of the terms of the Credit Agreement #e other Loan Documents ¢
each Borrower’s and its Subsidiaries’ operationsesithe Effective Date and, as of the date henmedfadter giving effect to the terms hereof,
no Default has occurred and is continuing.

4. Reference to and Effect on the Credit Agreement

(&) Upon the effectiveness of this Amendment purstmSection Zbove, on and after the date hereof, each refeiaribe Credit
Agreement to “this Agreement,” “hereunder,” “herg6herein” or words of like import shall mean and be a refeecto the Credit Agreeme
as modified hereby.

”ou

(b) Except as specifically amended or modified ig Amendment, the Credit Agreement and all otleaudhents, instruments and
agreements executed and/or delivered in connetiienewith, shall remain in full force and effeatdaare hereby ratified and confirmed.

(c) The execution, delivery and effectiveness &f &imendment shall not operate as a waiver of ayht,rpower or remedy of the
Administrative Agent, any other Agent or the Lergjeror constitute a waiver of any provision of @redit Agreement or any other
documents, instruments and agreements executedratadivered in connection therewith.

5. Costs and ExpenseEach Borrower agrees to pay all reasonable cpboket expenses, including the reasonable feesgeh and
disbursements of counsel for the Administrative #tgencurred by any Agent and any of its Affiliaie@sconnection with the preparation,
arrangement, execution and enforcement of this Almemt and all other instruments, agreements aret dittuments executed in connec
herewith. All costs and expenses in connection thith Amendment are due on or prior to the effectiate of this Amendment.

6. Governing Law THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUBE IN ACCORDANCE WITH, AND ANY
DISPUTE BETWEEN ANY BORROWER AND ANY OTHER PARTY HEETO ARISING OUT OF, CONNECTED WITH, RELATED
TO, OR INCIDENTAL TO THE RELATIONSHIP ESTABLISHED BTWEEN THEM IN CONNECTION WITH, THIS AMENDMENT,
THE CREDIT AGREEMENT OR ANY OF THE OTHER LOAN DOCUENTS, AND WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, TORT,
EQUITY, OR OTHERWISE, SHALL BE RESOLVED IN ACCORDABE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK
(INCLUDING 5-1401 OF THE GENERAL OBLIGATION LAW OFHE STATE OF NEW YORK BUT OTHERWISE WITHOUT
REGARD TO THE CONFLICTS OF LAWS PROVISIONS).



7. Headings Section headings in this Amendment are include=eih for convenience of reference only, are nat glethis Amendment
and shall not affect the construction of, or beetalnto consideration in interpreting, this Amendne

8. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any numbeowohterparts, all of which taken together shall tituie one
agreement, and any of the parties hereto may exdloist Amendment by signing any such counterpaetivBry of an executed counterpart of
a signature page of this Amendment by facsimilbyoother electronic image scan transmission (inolydia e-mail) shall be effective as
delivery of a manually executed counterpart of fhisendment. The Administrative Agent may also regtiat any such documents and
signatures delivered by facsimile or by other etadt image scan transmission be confirmed by aualnsigned original thereof; provided
that the failure to request or deliver the samd slo& limit the effectiveness of any document gnsture delivered by facsimile or other
electronic image scan transmission.

9. No Strict ConstructionThe parties hereto have participated jointlyhi@ hegotiation and drafting of this Amendment, @nedit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents. In theteweambiguity or question of intent or interpritatarises, this Amendment, the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents shall betaged as if drafted jointly by the parties heratal no presumption or burden of proof
shall arise favoring or disfavoring any party bytwé of the authorship of any provisions of this @émment, the Credit Agreement or any of
the other Loan Documents.

10. Amendment Constitutes Loan Documenhis Amendment shall constitute a “Loan Documdat’purposes of the Credit
Agreement and the other Loan Documents.

11. Reaffirmation of Liens and Guarantees

(a) Acknowledgment Each Loan Guarantor hereby (i) acknowledges pecdia copy this Amendment and (ii) consents & th
amendment of the Credit Agreement effected herebgh Loan Guarantor acknowledges and agrees thatf dine Loan Documents to whi
it is a party or otherwise bound shall continuéuihforce and effect (except to the extent explseasnended hereby) and that all of its
obligations thereunder shall be valid and enforteahd shall not be impaired or limited by the exEm or effectiveness of the Amendment.

(b) Reaffirmation of Liens Each of the Loan Parties hereby ratifies, cordiand reaffirms the grant by it of the Liens ancLsi¢y
interests in the Collateral in which it has rightgsuant to the terms of, and its obligations agré@ments under, the Collateral Documents to
which it is a party, and confirms that all suchl@ral will continue to secure the payment andgserance of all Secured Obligations and
Secured Liabilities, as applicable, purported tebeured thereby (including any amount payable utideCredit Agreement as amended by
this Amendment). Without limiting or qualifying tHeregoing, each party acknowledges that the defimif “Secured Liabilities” in each
Collateral Document, as applicable, includes theugsl Obligations (including any amount payableasriie Credit Agreement as amended
by this Amendment).

(c) Reaffirmation of Guarantee®Vithout limiting or qualifying the foregoing, aof the Loan Guarantors hereby ratifies, confiemd
reaffirms its obligations and agreements underchetK of the Credit Agreement, Section 2.2 of th€ Security Agreement, and Section 2.2
of that certain Mortgage Over Shares, dated Autjiis010, between Cott Beverages, Inc. and JPMdase Bank, N.A., London Branch,
as security trustee.

[The remainder of this page is intentionally blgnk.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been dulscexed as of the day and year first above written.

BORROWERS:
COTT CORPORATION CORPORATION COT
By /s/ Jason Ausher

Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT BEVERAGES INC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

CLIFFSTAR LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasure

COTT BEVERAGES LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leiter
Title: Director

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



OTHER LOAN PARTIES:
156775 CANADA INC.
By /s/ Jason Ausher

Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

967979 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

804340 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

2011438 ONTARIO LIMITED

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT RETAIL BRANDS LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leiter
Title: Director

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leitet
Title: Director

COTT EUROPE TRADING LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leiter
Title: Director

COTT PRIVATE LABEL LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leiter
Title: Director

COTT NELSON (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leitet
Title: Director

COTT (NELSON) LIMITED

By /s/ Greg Leiter
Name Greg Leiter
Title: Director

COTT USA FINANCE LLC

By /s/ Fiona Meadows
Name: Fiona Meadow
Title: Authorized Representati

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT HOLDINGS INC.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

INTERIM BCB, LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT VENDING INC.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT INVESTMENT, L.L.C.

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT USA CORP

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT U.S. HOLDINGS LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT U.S. ACQUISITION LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

COTT ACQUISITION LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

STAR REAL PROPERTY LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

CAROLINE LLC

By /s/ Jason Ausher
Name Jason Aushe
Title: Treasurel

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



COTT UK ACQUISITION LIMITED

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Director

COTT ACQUISITION LIMITED

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Director

COTT LUXEMBOURG S.A.R.L.

By: /s/ Jerry Hoyle

Name Jerry Hoyle
Title: Class A Manage

By: /s/ Luc Sunnen

Name Luc Sunner
Title: Class B Manage

Signature page to Amendment No.

Credit Agreemel



JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.
as Administrative Agent and as a Len

By /s/ David J. Waugh
Name David J. Waug!
Title: Authorized Officer

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., TORONTO
BRANCH, as a Lende

By /s/ Agostino A. Marchetti
Name Agostino A. Marchett
Title: Authorized Officer

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A., LONDON
BRANCH, as a Lende

By /s/ Timothy I. Jacob
Name Timothy I. Jacot
Title: Senior Vice Presidet

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



GENERAL ELECTRIC CAPITAL
CORPORATION,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Philip F. Carfora
Name Philip F. Carfore
Title: Duly Authorized Signator

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as a Lende

By:/s/ Andrew A. Doherty
Name: Andrew A. Dohert
Title: Senior Vice Presidel

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



BANK OF AMERICA, N.A., CANADA BRANCH,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Medina Sales de Andrade
Name: Medina Sales de Andra
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



DEUTSCHE BANK AG, CANADA BRANCH,
as a Lende

By: /s/ David Gynn
Name: David Gyni
Title: Chief Financial Office

By: /s/ Marcellus Leung
Name: Marcellus Leun
Title: Assistant Vice Preside

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH
as a Lende

By: /s/ Carin Keegan
Name: Carin Keega
Title: Director

By: /s/ Erin Morrisey
Name: Erin Morrise)
Title: Director

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



WELLS FARGO CAPITAL FINANCE, LLC,
as a Lende

By: /s/ David Hill
Name: David Hill
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



WELLS FARGO CAPITAL FINANCE
CORPORATION CANADA,
as a Lende

By: /s/ Domenic Cosentino
Name: Domenic Cosentir
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. (LONDON
BRANCH),

By: /s/ David Hill
Name: David Hill
Title: Vice Presiden

Signature page to Amendment No.
Credit Agreemel



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jerry Fowden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

May 7, 2012 /sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowder
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA NES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002.

I, Jay Wells, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Cott Corporation

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatorny untrue statement of a material fact or emnittate a material fact
necessary to make the statements made, in ligheafircumstances under which such statementsmwade, not misleading with
respect to the period covered by this reg

3.  Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamd,other financial information included in théport, fairly presentin all
material respects the financial condition, resofteperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presentet

this report;

4.  The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamid procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedaoites designed under
our supervision, to ensure that material infornmatielating to the registrant, including its condatied subsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaiing, or caused such internal control over faiakreporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide readerasurance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntbd report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; ar

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportirtgat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annyabrrg that has materiall
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioriernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cortvelr financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrgistrant’s ability to record, process, summasiad report financial
information; anc

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalveanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

May 7, 2012 /sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officel




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jerry Fowden, Chief Executived®ffof Cott Corporation (the “Company”), has exeduthis certification in connection
with the filing with the Securities and Exchangen@oission of the Company’s Quarterly Report on F&0¥Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2012 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsiscknowledge:
(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc
(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of
the Company
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the @  day of May, 2012.

/sl Jerry Fowdel
Jerry Fowden
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 ASADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-
OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned, Jay Wells, Chief Financial Offisge€ott Corporation (the “Company”), has executad certification in connection with
the filing with the Securities and Exchange Commois®f the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 1@6the quarter ended March 31,
2012 (the “Report”).
The undersigned hereby certifies that to the bielsisctknowledge:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphesents, in all material respects, the finan@alition and results of operations of

the Company

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executisdctrtification as of the @  day of May, 2012.

/sl Jay Wells
Jay Wells
Chief Financial Officel




